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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the fiscal yeanded June 30, 2005

Commission File Number 0-5664

(Name, State of Incorporation, Address and Telephdnamber)

> ROYALGOLD,INC

(a Delaware Corporation)

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202-1132
(303) 573-1660

I.R.S. Employer Identification Numb&¢#-0835164
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(teoAct: None

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(t)eoAct:

Common Stock $0.01 Par Value NASDAQ National Market System
(Title of Class) (Name of Exchange on which register

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Seetk3 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiech shorter period that the Registrant was redudadile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastfgs. Yedd No M

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxrge Act). Yedd No™

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedéfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 111 of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 108.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ia@relerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 offixehange Act). Ye®I NoO

Aggregate market value of the voting stock heldhbg-affiliates of the Registrant, based upon tlesiog sale price of Royal Gold on
December 31, 2004, as reported on the Nasdaq Mafiterket was $380.6 million. As of August 17, 20@%ere were 21,029,352 shares of
common stock, $0.01 par value, issued and outstgndi

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual NMepof Stockholders scheduled to be held on Nover@h2005, and to be filed within
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PART I.

ITEMS 1. & 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

The information in this Form 10-K contains certiinwvard-looking statements, including statementateg to trends in the Company’s
business. The Company’s actual results may diffetenally from the results discussed in the forwimimking statements. Factors that might
cause such a difference include those discuss&Ligsiness and Properties — Risk Factors” and “Managnt’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation” a8l ag those discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

General

Royal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”, “we”,
precious metals royalties.

us”, or “ol), together with its subsidiaries, is engagethi@ business of acquiring and managing

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. Royalties
are passive (non-operating) interests in mininggotse that provide the right to revenue from theigut after deducting specified costs, if any.
We also explore and develop properties thoughotdain precious metals and seek to obtain royatsrésts and other carried ownership
interests in these properties in connection withahbsequent transfer of interests to other micamgpanies. We expect that substantially all
of our revenues will continue to be derived fromalty interests. We do not conduct mining operatianthis time. During the 2005 fiscal
year, we focused on the management of our existipgity interests, the acquisition of royalty irgsts, and the creation of royalty intere
through financing and exploration.

Our financial results are closely tied to the p¢gold. During the 2005 fiscal year, the pricegofd averaged $422 per ounce compared with
an average price of $389 per ounce for the 20@4lfiear. As a result of the increased gold poce,GSR1 sliding-scale royalty at the
Pipeline Mining Complex (discussed below) paid aitates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5% compared witinpents calculated at rates ranging
from 3.4% to 4.0% during the prior year. This irage in our realized sliding-scale royalty rate dboted to revenues of $25,302,332 during
the 2005 fiscal year, compared with revenues of 383,071 during the 2004 fiscal year.

Our principal mineral property interests are:
— two slidin¢-scale gross smelter return, or GSR, royalty inter
— one fixed GSR royalty interest; a
— one net value royalty intere:

all relating to a mining complex known as the RipeMining Complex, which includes the Pipeline &@uwlith Pipeline gold deposits,
operated by the Cortez Joint Venture, which isiit jeenture between Placer Cortez, Inc. (60%),tskliary of Placer Dome, Inc. (“Placer
Dome”), and Kennecott Explorations (Australia) L{d0%), a subsidiary of Rio Tinto;

— one 1.8% net smelter return (“NSR”) royalty on thajority of the Leeville Project, which includiéx® development stage Leeville
underground mine (“Leeville North”) and a portiohLeeville South (formerly known as Carlin Eastpevated by Newmont Mining
Corporation “Newmon”); and

— one 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims, which ce®weportion of the Betze-Post open pit mine, atGoldstrike operation operated
by Barrick Gold Corporatior”Barrick”).
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Our other producing royalty interests include &b%7no 3.5% NSR sliding-scale royalty interest cavgma portion of the Bald Mountain
mine, operated by Placer Dome U.S. Inc. The slidicgle royalty increases or decreases with the gode, adjusted by the 1986 Producer
Price Index. Our royalty rate would increase to @%und a gold price of $500 per ounce. We also @a&# NSR royalty on a number of
properties in Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, idiclg the Martha silver mine, which is operated me@r d’Alene Mines Corporation
(“Coeur d’Alene”).

On October 14, 2004, we purchased two royalty &sisrin the Troy underground silver and copper moperated by Revett Silver Company
(“Revett”), located in northeastern Montana. Thistfroyalty is a production payment equivalent @6 GSR royalty from all metals and
products produced and sold from the Troy mine.ex®rted by Revett at the time of the transactiota) tontained proven and probable
reserves at the Troy mine were 13.6 million ourafesilver and 113 million pounds of copper. The G8Ralty will extend until either
cumulative production of approximately 9.9 millioances of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppemye receive $10.5 million in
cumulative payments, whichever occurs first. Theoed royalty is a Perpetual royalty, also from Tmey mine, which begins at 6.1% on any
production in excess of 11.0 million ounces ofeiland 94.1 million pounds of copper, and stepsrdimaa perpetual 2% after cumulative
production has exceeded 12.7 million ounces oésihind 108.2 million pounds of copper.

Estimates received from the mine operators indit#tat gold production, attributable to our royattterests, for calendar year 2005 is
expected to be approximately 860,000 ounces franPtheline Mining Complex, 90,000 ounces from tlee\ille South mine and 51,000
from the Leeville North mine at the Leeville Prdjeg&74,000 ounces from the SJ Claims and 40,000asuftom the Bald Mountain mine. T
Martha silver mine is expected to produce 1.7 orillounces of silver attributable to our royaltyeinast for the 2005 calendar year. The Troy
mine is expected to produce 2.0 million ouncedleésand 17.0 million pounds of copper attributahbb our royalty interest for the 2005
calendar year. During the first six months of cdemyear 2005, the mine operators have reportetbptimn attributable to our royalty
interests of 505,451 ounces from the Pipeline Mjrtomplex, 36,630 ounces from the Leeville Southgroduction occurred at Leeville
North mine during this period), 241,244 ounces ftbm SJ Claims and 14,281 ounces from the Bald Maumine. Revett reported that
Troy mine produced 522,145 ounces of silver andwilion pounds of copper during the first six mositof calendar 2005. Martha mine does
not provide production data.

In addition, as of June 30, 2005, we own royaltgiiests in the following exploration stage projebisne of our non-producing stage projects
contain proven and probable reserves.

— A 5% NSR royalty interest on a portion of the M@anyon project, located in Lander County, Nev:

— A 16.5% net profits interest royalty on the Buckin@outh project, located in Eureka County, Nev:

— A 1% NSR royalty interest on the Long Valley golwject, located in eastern Californ

— A 1% NSR royalty, on possible production of precionetals on the Svetloye project in Rus

— A 2% NSR royalty on a number of exploration projgarin Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, currenthyned/by Yamana Gold, Inc
— A 1% NSR royalty interest on the Simon Creek prpjlecated in Eureka County, Nevar

— —A0.25% net value royalty interest on the Horse ktain project, located in Lander County, Neve

4
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— A 1.5% net value royalty interest on the Ferris/k®Greek project, located in Lander County, Nevi
— A 0.5% NSR royalty interest on the Rye projectaked in Pershing County, Nevau

— A 2.5% NSR royalty interest on the BSC projectaled in Elko County, Nevad

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on a 60% interest in the Copasin project, located in Lander County, Neve

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on a 67% interest (approxehain the ICBM project, located in Lander Countg &tumboldt County,
Nevada;

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on the Long Peak project, ledah Lander County, Nevada; a
— A 0.75% NSR royalty on the Dixie Flats project,dted in Elko County, Nevad

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, vgeesed to purchase an additional 2.5% net profter@st (“NPI”) royalty on the Buckhorn
South property, located in Eureka County, Nevadia3f000 shares of our common stock, valued ateequpately $70,000, including
acquisition costs. The purchase of the additiomarest resulted in the Company holding a 16.5%d¥lty in the Buckhorn South propet
Buckhorn South is a property of approximately 5,80€es, subject to 265 unpatented mining claintsitexl approximately 2 miles south of
the Buckhorn mine.

During the past fiscal year we also evaluated dppdres for royalty acquisitions in North Ameridayrope, South America, Asia, Australia
and Africa.

We derive most of our revenue from royalties frdva Pipeline Mining Complex. In fiscal 2005, we gexted royalty revenues of
$21,392,636 from the Pipeline Mining Complex, resargting 85% of our total revenues. In addition,geaerated royalty revenue of
$2,026,052 from the SJ Claims, $763,012 from theville South mine, $749,362 from the Troy mine, $203 from the Bald Mountain
mine, and $163,167 from the Martha mine.

We were incorporated under the laws of the Staf@eddware on January 5, 1981. Our executive offizedocated at 1660 Wynkoop Street,
Suite 1000, Denver, Colorado 80202, (303) 573-166d,we maintain a web site at www.royalgold.com.

Developments During Fiscal Year 2005

The significant developments during fiscal year20(&re:
(1) Our royalty revenues increased to $25.3 milliormpared with $21.4 million during fiscal year 20!

(2) We declared an increase in our annual divito $0.20 per basic share, which is now pagliarterly installments. This represents a
33% increase compared with the dividend paid dufiswal year 2004

(3) We completed the purchase of two royalty intergstee Troy underground silver and copper mineratgsl by Revet
(4) We completed our commitment to earn inf®@aNSR royalty interest on certain exploration gies in Russia. As of June 30,
2005, we have contributed our entire $1.3 milliotat commitment

5
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Royalties on Producing Properties

Recent activities at each of the significant pradggroperties in which we have a royalty intesast described in the following pages. Please
also see footnote 4 to the Consolidated Finand&kESents included in Part II, Item 8. “Financitt®ments and Supplementary Data” of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for more informationtbie history of these properties.

We do not operate the properties in which we hayalty interests and therefore much of the infofaratlisclosed in this Form 10-K
regarding these properties is provided to us byfierators. For example, the operators of the vanwoperties provide us information
regarding metals production, estimates of miners¢rves and additional mineralization. There isenimiormation available to the public
from the operators of the properties in which weehayalties, including reports filed by Newmonlkaéer Dome, Coeur d’Alene and Barrick
with the United States Securities and Exchange Ciesiam. For risks associated with reserve estimatease see “Risk Factors Estimates
of reserves and mineralization by the operatorsioks in which we have royalty interests are sulifesignificant estimates which can
change.”

Pipeline Mining Complex

The Pipeline Mining Complex is a large open pitll mnd heap leach operation located approximat@lgié miles southwest of Elko, Nevada,
in Lander County. The site is reached by drivingtfeom EIko on Interstate 80 approximately 46 siilend proceeding south on State
Highway 306 approximately 23 miles. The Pipelineaig Complex includes both the Pipeline and thetlS&ipeline deposits and is opere
by the Cortez Joint Venture.

The royalty interests we hold at the Pipeline Min@omplex include:

(@)

Reserve Claim8GSRYT) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all gpidbduced from the “Reserve Claims,” which inclugés

claims that encompass all of the proven and prebedserves in the Pipeline and South Pipeline dspas of April 1, 1999. As
defined in our royalty agreement with Cortez, 0 @R5royalty means the revenues attributed to preduated and removed, with no
deduction for any costs paid by or charged to @oegcept for deductions of Mining Law Reform Co#éning Law Reform Costs
includes all amounts paid by or charged to Corbeahy royalty, assessment, production tax or déhgrimposed on and measured
by production, to the extent that any such levyaeeafter imposed by the United States, in conoeetith reform of the General
Mining Law of 1872, as amended (the “General Minlragv”) or otherwise. The revenues attributed tot€oare determined on a
deemed market value basis, being the gross valtieegfroducts determined as the total quantityrodlipcts outturned to Cortez’s
account at the refiner and, in the case of suctymts delivered to any customer, for any calendartgr multiplied by: (1) for gold,
the average daily P.M. price fixing for gold by thendon Bullion Association as reported in the W&tlleet Journglor any other
agreed upon successor publication for the appkcehlendar quarter, (2) for silver, the daily pffiséng for silver by the London
Bullion Association as reported in the Wall Stréetirnal, or any other agreed upon successor publicatiothéapplicable calendar
quarter, and (3) for all other products, the deeprézk shall be the NSR. The GSR royalty rate @Rbserve Claims is tied to the
gold price, without indexing for inflation or defian as shown in the table belo

6
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(b)

(©

(d)

()

(f)

GAS Claims“(GSR2) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all ggicdbduced from the 288 claims outside of the Res€taams.
The GAS Claims include 310 lode mining claims, ptdduction from 22 of the GAS Claims that encomphesSouth Pipeline
reserve as of April 1, 1999, are subject to theeResClaims GSR royalty. The GSR royalty rate an@AS Claims is tied to the gc
price, without indexing for inflation or deflatio

Reserve and GAS Claims Fixed Royaltg$R3). The GSR3 royalty is a fixed rate GSR royalty ofil2%% for the life of the mine
and covers the same cumulative area as is covgredriiwo slidin¢-scale GSR royalties, GSR1 and GS

Net Value Royalty“NVR1"). This is a fixed 0.39% net value royalty on prodoictirom the GAS Claims located on a portion of the
Pipeline Mining Complex that excludes the Pipelpen pit. This NVR1 royalty is calculated by dediugtcontract defined
processing-related and associated capital costsidbumining costs from the revenue received byogperator from the claims
covered by the royalty

The Silver GSRThis is a 7% GSR royalty on all silver produceahf any of the Reserve Claims or the GAS claimsjreencing
July 1, 1999

The Other Products NSRhis is a 3% NSR royalty on all products, othieart gold or silver, produced from any of the Reserv
Claims or GAS claims, commencing July 1, 1999. TH&R is defined as the actual price received bye2dor the sale of products
other than gold and silver prior to delivery to amgstomer, refinery or upgrading facility and afeductions for any Mining Law
Reform Costs, the costs of insuring, marketinggfreor transportation and, if applicable, refiniagd treatment costs, for such
products. There is no current production attributethis royalty interes

The following table shows the current sliding-sc@®R royalty rates under our royalty agreement @ibhtez.

London PM Quarterly Averac GSR1 GSR2

Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag Royalty Percentag
Below $210.0( 0.4(% 0.72%
$210.0C — $229.9¢ 0.5(% 0.9(%
$230.0C — $249.9¢ 0.75% 1.35%
$250.0C — $269.9¢ 1.3(% 2.32%
$270.0C — $309.9¢ 2.25% 4.05%
$310.0C — $329.9¢ 2.6(% 4.68%
$330.0C — $349.9¢ 3.0(% 5.4(%
$350.0C — $369.9¢ 3.4(% 6.12%
$370.0C — $389.9¢ 3.7%% 6.75%
$390.0C — $409.9¢ 4.0% 7.2(%
$410.0C — $429.9¢ 4.2%% 7.65%
$430.0C — $449.9¢ 4.5(% 8.1(%
$450.0C — $469.9¢ 4.7% 8.55%
$470.0C and above 5.00% 9.0(%

Under certain circumstances we would be entitledelayed production payments (i.@ayments not recoupable by Cortez) of $400,000 pe

year.
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Pipeline Mining Comple) Plan of Operations

In September 1996, Placer Dome reported that tlieeZdoint Venture submitted an Amendment to tipelitie Plan of Operations for the
South Pipeline Project, with the Battle MountaireMada, field office of the Bureau of Land Managetn{&dBLM"). The Plan Amendment
involved mining and processing of the South Pigetieposit. A Record of Decision and Plan of OpenatiApproval allowing surface
disturbance in connection with the mining and pssagg of the South Pipeline deposit (the “permitgs issued by the BLM in June 2000. In
July 2000, a Notice of Appeal and Petition for SRanding Appeal was filed with the United Statderlior Board of Land Appeals (“IBLA")
by the Great Basin Mine Watch, the Western Shosbmfense Project and the Mineral Policy CenterJ@muary 9, 2001, the IBLA denied
the petition for stay. On November 3, 2003, the ABlismissed the appeal for South Pipeline Expansion

The United States Department of the Interior, tgfothe BLM, issued a record of decision in July2@@proving the project as defined in
Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Statem&8E|1S”) for the Pipeline and South Pipeline piparsion project at the Cortez Joint
Venture. The FSEIS involves an expansion of PipéBouth Pipeline and includes the GAP and Crossrdagosits. These areas are subject
to our royalty interests. Placer Dome commenceg#maitting process in January of 2001.

The following table shows the proven and probaberves that have been reported by Cortez at gedifid Mining Complex covered by our
royalties. Our royalties at the Pipeline Mining Qaex cover some of the same reserves.

Pipeline Mining Complex
Proven and Probable Reserves Subject to Our Reg&lf?(3)4)
As of December 31, 2004

Containec
Tons Average Grad Ounces of Gol(®)
Royalty (millions) (ounces per tor (millions)
GSR 16) 196.C 0.02¢ 5.75¢
GSR 2 15.1 0.017 0.25¢
GSR 30 211.1 0.02¢ 6.01:
NVR 1) 126.7 0.02¢ 3.511

@) “Reserve” is that part of a mineral deposit whicluld be economically and legally extracted odpiced at the time of the reserve
determination

@  “Proven (Measured) Reserves” are reserves fochvia) quantity is computed from dimensions revéaieoutcrops, trenches, workings
or drill holes, and the grade is computed fromréslts of detailed sampling, and (b) the sitesrfspection, sampling and measuren
are spaced so closely and the geologic characterieell defined that the size, shape, depth ame:rai content of the reserves are well
established

®  “Probable (Indicated) Reserves” are reserves/foch the quantity and grade are computed fromrinfdion similar to that used for
proven (measured) reserves, but the sites for atigme sampling, and measurement are farther apante otherwise less adequately
spaced. The degree of assurance of probable (tediceeserves, although lower than that for prayeeasured) reserves, is high enc
to assume geological continuity between pointshseovation
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4)
®)

(6)
O]
®
©)

Amounts shown represent 100% of the reserves dubjecir royalty interest and do not take into astdosses in processing the ¢

Contained ounces shown are before an allowandagilédion of ore in the mining process. The expgelgbrocessing recovery rates are
about 88% for oxide mill-grade ore, and 68% oxioletfeap leach material. These reserves, estimgt€wiiez, are based on a life-of-
mine gold price of $350 per ounc

GSR1 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers the Reserve Cla
GSR2 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers an area outside of treeRe Claims
GSR3 is a 0.71% fixed rate royalty that coverstime area as GSR1 and GS

NVR1 is a 0.39% net value royalty that covers patidun from the GAS Claims, which covers a portidriree Pipeline Mining Comple
that excludes the Pipeline pit. NVR1 is calculdtgdieducting contract defined processing-relatebeesociated capital costs but not
mining costs from revenue received by the oper.

Set forth below is a table showing, in the aggregidie additional mineralization that has beenntepdoy Cortez at the Pipeline Mining
Complex for the area covered by our royalties. @yalties at the Pipeline Mining Complex cover sashéhe same additional mineralizatit

Pipeline Mining Complex
Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Royaltié¥2)
As of December 31, 2004

Tons Average Grad
Royalty (millions) (ounces per tor
GSR 1®) 57.2 0.02¢
GSR 24 113.¢ 0.03¢
GSR 30 171.C 0.031
NVR 1) 154.( 0.031

(Y

@
®
Q)
®)
(6)

Additional mineralization has not been includedha proven and probable ore reserve estimates deeven though drilling indicate:
sufficient quantity and grade to warrant furtheplexation or development expenditures, these dépdsinot qualify as commercially
mineable ore bodies until further drilling and niletayical work are completed, and until other ecomand technical feasibility factors
based upon such work are resolv

The amounts shown are computed by the Cortez Veimture and represent 100% of the depo
GSR1 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers the Reserve Cla

GSR2 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers an area outside of treeRe Claims

GSR3 is a 0.71% fixed rate royalty that coverstime area as GSR1 and GS

NVR1 is a 0.39% net value royalty that covers patidun from the GAS Claims, which covers a portidriree Pipeline Mining Comple
that excludes the Pipeline pit. NVR1 is calculdtgdieducting contract defined processing-relatebeesociated capital costs but not
mining costs from the revenue received by the dper
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The following illustration depicts our royalty imests at the Pipeline Mining Complex:

g
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SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims thatc®a portion of the Betze-Post mine, in EurekarBguNevada. Betze-Post is an open
pit mine operated by Barrick, at its Goldstrike peaty. The SJ Claims and the Betze-Post openepétdproximately 24 air miles northwest of
Carlin, Nevada. The property is accessed by drivimgh from Carlin on State Highway 766 for 19 raiend then on an improved gravel road
for two miles.

Barrick estimated that at a $375 gold price, proaed probable reserves related to our royalty éstesit the SJ Claims includes 68.5 million
tons of ore, at an average grade of 0.141 ounag®pecontaining approximately 9.7 million ounadgyold as of December 31, 2004. We are
continuing to work with Barrick to define the addital mineralized material on the SJ Claims thaeiated to our royalty interest.

The following map depicts our royalty interestta SJ Claims:

10
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Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Project, in Eureka County,
Nevada. The Leeville Project is approximately I9wles northwest of Carlin, Nevada. The propestaécessed by driving north from Cal
on State Highway 766 for 19 miles and then on gurawved gravel road for two miles. Leeville Northais underground mine currently under
development by Newmont. Newmont has announcedttiménds to initiate production at Leeville Nodiaring the fourth calendar quartel
2005. Currently, we derive royalty revenue from emglound operations on a portion of the LeevilletS8anine, which is operated by
Newmont. Production from the Leeville South minexpected to continue through calendar 2(

As of December 31, 2004, Newmont estimated that$850 gold price, proven and probable reservaseetto the Leeville South mine
includes 0.3 million tons of ore, at an averagalgraf 0.411 ounces per ton, containing 115,000 esin€ gold. In addition, Newmont has
reported additional mineralized material at Leevilouth totaling 17,000 tons, at an average gra@eb0 ounces per ton.

At the Leeville North mine, proven and probableeress include 5.3 million tons of ore, at an avergoade of 0.479 ounces per ton,
containing 2.6 million ounces of gold. In additidéewmont has reported additional mineralized matéoitaling 1.4 million tons, at an
average grade of 0.458 ounces per ton, at LedVileh.

The following map depicts our royalty interestta teeville Project:

NORTH
A
0 A000

Feet

- |
/ |
10
Leaville South
T s s
0 Gold Deposits

15 e ROy EILY Property

QOutline

11




Table of Contents

Troy Mine

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we pasel two royalty interests in the Troy undergrosihcer and copper mine, operated by
Revett, located in Lincoln County, Montana. TheyTnaine is approximately 15 miles south of the tavfTroy, Montana, and access is via a
paved road connected to State Highway 56.

The first royalty interest we acquired in the Traine is a production payment equivalent to a 7.08R@oyalty from all metals and products
produced and sold from the Troy mine. As reportg®bvett at the time of the transaction, total aored proven and probable reserves at the
Troy mine were 13.6 million ounces of silver an@ hiillion pounds of copper. The GSR royalty wiltesd until either cumulative

production of approximately 9.9 million ounces t¥er and 84.6 million pounds of copper, or we iigees10.5 million in cumulative
payments, whichever occurs first. The second rgyaterest we acquired in the Troy Mine is a Parpktoyalty, which begins at 6.1% on ¢
production in excess of 11.0 million ounces ofeiland 94.1 million pounds of copper, and stepsrdimaa perpetual 2% after cumulative
production has exceeded 12.7 million ounces oésihind 108.2 million pounds of copper.

As of December 31, 2004, Revett estimated thatb&t42 per ounce silver price, proven and probegslerves related to the Troy mine
include 8.7 million tons of ore, at an average grafi1.570 ounces per ton, containing 13.6 milbances of silver. In addition, Revett has
reported additional mineralized material at theyTmane for silver totaling 46.8 million tons, at amerage grade of 1.540 ounces per ton.

As of December 31, 2004, Revett estimated thatb& @85 per pound copper price, proven and prolbrakerves related to the Troy mine
includes 8.7 million tons of ore, at an averagealgraf 0.65 percent, containing 113 million pounfisapper. In addition, Revett has reported
additional mineralized material at the Troy mine dopper totaling 46.8 million tons, at an averggade of 0.75 percent.

Revett recently announced that if they attain ptahproduction by the end of the calendar year 2008 quarter, the Troy mine is expected
to produce approximately 2 million ounces of silaed 17 million pounds of copper in calendar 200%s is a reduction in estimated
production numbers reported to the Company as oeBder 31, 2004, of 2.8 million ounces of silved 3.4 million pounds of copper for
calendar year 2005.

The following map depicts our royalty interestsret Troy mine:
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Bald Mountain Mine

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royaltyagrortion of the Bald Mountain mine. The Bald Mtin mine is an open pit, heap
leach mine operated by Placer Dome U.S. Inc. THe Bauntain mine is located in White Pine Countypeoximately 65 miles south of
Elko, Nevada. The Bald Mountain mine is approxiyateidway between Elko and Ely, Nevada. From Elke mine is reached by driving
on paved State Highway 46 south for approximaté&lymles, then for 30 miles on an improved gravelrto the mine site. From Ely, the
drive is 30 miles west on paved U.S. Highway 5@ a5 miles north on the improved gravel Ruby MassRead.

As of December 31, 2004, Placer Dome informed asttie portion of the mine covered by our royatiteiest contained proven and probable
reserves of 6.3 million tons of ore, at an avergigele of 0.070 ounces per ton, containing appraein@40,000 ounces of gold. These
reserves are based on a gold price of $350 perolmaddition, Placer Dome has reported that thpgrty covered by our royalty interest
contains an additional 9.0 million tons of minezati material, at an average grade of 0.034 ourere®p of gold.

Martha Mine

We own a 2% NSR royalty on mineral production froentain properties in Santa Cruz Province, Argentincluding the underground
Martha silver mine operated by Coeur d’Alene. Thartda Mine is located in remote southern Argentiriee property is accessed by driving
west-northwest from the coastal town of Puerto Bdian, which is approximately 1,300 miles soutlBaknos Aires. From Puerto San Julian
the mine is reached by driving 95 miles on publghivays (the last 25 of which are unpaved roadd)than five miles on a local road, which
is also unpaved.

In April 2002, Yamana Resources sold its inteneshe Martha mine and other exploration propeitigbe western part of the Province to
Coeur d’Alene. Coeur began mining and truckingtoranother of its properties in Chile for procegsiAs of December 31, 2004, Coeur
d’Alene informed us that, at a $6.00 per ounceesifrice, estimated proven and probable resensexiated with the Martha mine royalty
includes approximately 57,000 tons of ore, at aaraye grade of 68.6 ounces per ton, containingoappately 3.9 million ounces of silver.

In addition, Coeur d’Alene has reported an add#lof,000 tons of mineralized material, at an ayergrade of 52.8 ounces of silver per ton.

Coeur d’Alene recently announced that as of Jun@@05, it updated its ore reserve estimates fiMhartha mine, based on a silver price of
$6.50 per ounce, and proven and probable ore reseelated to the Company’s royalty now include®0@ tons of ore, at an average grade
of 61.17 ounces per ton, containing approximatebyrdillion ounces of silver.
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The following table summarizes proven and probabderves that have been reported to us by thetopefar SJ Claims, the Leeville
Project, Troy mine, Bald Mountain and Martha miogaity interests as of December 31, 2004:

SJ Claims, Leeville Project, Troy Mine, Bald Mountand Martha Mine Royalty Interests
Proven and Probable Ore Reserves Subject to Oualfresy
As of December 31, 2004

Containec
Tons Average Grad Ounces
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per tor (millions)
SJ Claims@) Barrick Reserve) 68.t 0.141 9.67¢
Leeville Project
Leeville North®) Newmont Reserve®) 5.3 0.47¢ 2.56(
Leeville Soutt®) Newmont Reserve(l) 0.3 0.411 0.11¢
Troy Mine (silver)®) Revett Reserve@) 7.8 1.57¢ 12.27¢
Troy Mine (copper® Revett Reserve®) 7.8 0.65 percen 102 pound:
Bald Mountain(™ Placer Dome Reserve®) 6.3 0.07¢ 0.44(¢
Martha Mine (silver®)©) Coeur ( Alene Reserve) 0.057 68.€ 3.93(

@
@
®
Q)
®)
(6)
0]
®
©)

Gold reserves were calculated by the various opesatt $350 per ounce, except Barrick who calcdlaetserves at $375 per oun
Silver reserves were calculated by the operat6bat2 per ounce for Troy and $6.00 per ounce fortivdamine.

Copper prices were calculated by the operator &850per pounc

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Clai

We own a 1.8% carried working interest on a majarftthe Leeville Project

We own a 7.0% GSR royalty in the Troy mine, subfeatertain production thresholc

We own a 1.75 to 3.5% slidi-scale NSR royalty on a portion of the Bald Mountaiime.

We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mi

See page 13 for updated reserve information asred 30, 200
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The following table summarizes additional mineratian that has been reported to us by the operfdpf&] Claims, the Leeville Project, Ti
mine, Bald Mountain and Martha mine royalty intésess of December 31, 2004:

SJ Claims, Leeville Project, Troy Mine, Bald Mountand Martha Mine Royalty Interests

Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Royaltiks
As of December 31, 2004

Tons Average Grad
Royalty Operatol Category (millions) (ounces per tor
SJ Claims) Barrick Mineralized Materic N/A N/A
Leeville Project
Leeville North®) Newmont Mineralized Materie 1.4 0.45¢
Leeville Soutt®) Newmont Mineralized Materie 0.017 0.31¢
Troy Mine (silver)@ Revett Mineralized Materic 46.¢ 1.537
Troy Mine (copper® Revett Mineralized Materie 46.¢ 0.75 percen
Bald Mountain(®) Placer Dom¢  Mineralized Materic 9.0 0.03¢
Martha Mine (silver®) Coeur CAlene Mineralized Materic 0.07¢ 52.¢

(Y
@
(©)
4)
®)
(6)

For a definition of additional mineralization, Seetnote 1 on page !

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Clai

We own a 1.8% carried working interest on a majarftthe Leeville Project

We own a 7.0% GSR royalty and a 6.1% Perpetualiyoyathe Troy mine, subject to certain productibnesholds
We own a 1.75 to 3.5% slidi-scale NSR royalty on a portion of the Bald Mountaime.

We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha Mi
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Historical Production

The following table discloses historical productfonthe properties that are subject to our royaidtgrests, as reported by the operators of the
mines for the past three fiscal years:

Historical Production in Ounces (Pounds for CoppgrProperty
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

2005 2004 2003

Pipeline Mining Comple; 973,60: 973,22( 1,061,07.
Bald Mountain 28,03’ 33,89« 113,42(
SJ Claims 531,34. 401,91¢ 241,13:
Leeville Project

Leeville North@) N/A N/A N/A

Leeville Soutr 93,18( 105,50¢! 65,10:¢
Troy Mine (silver)@) 522,14 N/A N/A
Troy Mine (copper® 4,584,57. N/A N/A
Martha Mine (silver® N/A N/A N/A

@) Production at Leeville North is expected to begithie fourth calendar quarter of 201
(2) Troy mine began production in calendar 2C
(3) We do not have historical production data for tharfiia mine
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Royalties on Exploration Stage Properties

The following are descriptions of our interestsagalties on exploration stage properties. Theeenar proven and probable reserves
associated with these properties at this time.

Mule Canyon

We own a 5.0% NSR royalty on a portion of the MGknyon property located in Lander County, Nevadhés property is controlled by
Newmont Mining Corporatior

Buckhorn South Project

The Buckhorn South project is approximately 5,00@&s and is located in Eureka County, Nevada, appedely 50 miles southwest of Elk
Nevada, and approximately two miles south of Buckhmine. The property consists of 265 unpatentedngiclaims. Yeeround access to
Buckhorn South is available via paved, and imprdvetunpaved county roads. Of the 265 claims thatgrise Buckhorn South, we leased
131 claims and staked the balance of the projeet dihe leased claims are burdened by cumulatineeiarty royalties equal to a 4% NSR
royalty; the remaining claims are subject to anothigd party 1% NSR royalty.

In 1998, we assigned our interest in the properrtgloGold North America (formerly Independencenvig Company, Inc.) in exchange
this 14% net profits royalty and AngloGold’s asstimp of all exploration costs and existing burddns2002, AngloGold transferred its
interest in the Buckhorn South project to the Cod@int Venture, subject to all existing burdens|uding Royal Gold’s 14% net profits
interest royalty. The Cortez Joint Venture hasqrened minimal exploration work on the property.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we agréegurchase an additional 2.5% NPI royalty intecgsthe Buckhorn South property for
3,000 shares of our common stock, valued at apmrabely $70,000, including acquisition costs. Thechase of the additional interest
resulted in the Company holding a 16.5% NPI inBoekhorn South property.

Long Valley

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Long Valley gotdject in eastern California. The project is coldt and under evaluation by Vista
Gold Corporation.

RG Russia

On June 20, 2003, through a newly formed wholly-e&subsidiary, RG Russia, Inc., we entered intaggeement for exploration in Russia
with a subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Cogpion, who holds an exploration license grantedhgyRussian government. As part of
the exploration agreement with the subsidiary aflpfiDodge Exploration Corporation, we were requtteprovide exploration funding
totaling $1.3 million over a period not to exceedronths from the date of the agreement to vetstigroyalty interest. On May 3, 2005, the
subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Corporagatered into an agreement with Fortress Mineratp@ation (“Fortress”), whereby
Fortress acquired a 51% indirect interest in thetlBye project, with an option to earn an additi®826 indirect interest by
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completion of certain work requirements. Our 1% N8falty remains in effect as to 100% of the prbojHceexploration is successful and a
license to mine is secured, we will receive a 1%RN8yalty.

As of June 30, 2005, we have funded our entire 8illBn commitment. We have expensed the fundimpant as a component of
Exploration and Business Development in the accaoryipg consolidated financial statements includeBant Il, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this AnnegldR on Form 10-K.

Argentine Royalties

Yamana Gold, Inc. (formerly Yamana Resources) ctmproperties located in the eastern part of #n&&Cruz Province, Argentina, which
are not in production. We own a 2% NSR royalty loese properties, which remain under the contrdashana Gold, and have been largely
inactive for our fiscal year 2005.

Simon Creek

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Simon Creek prtyp&rhich was acquired in the High Desert acquisitias discussed further in Part Il,
Item 8, footnote 11 to the Notes to ConsolidatethRcial Statements. The Simon Creek property mtéatin Eureka County, Nevada, and is
operated by Barrick.

Horse Mountain

We acquired a 0.25% in the Horse Mountain propasta result of the High Desert acquisition. Thesddvlountain property is located in
Lander County, Nevada, and is operated by PlacereDo

Ferris/Cooks Creek

As a result of the High Desert acquisition, we abtained a 1.50% net value royalty interest orree¢nues derived from the Ferris/Cooks
Creek property, located in Lander County, Nevadd,ia operated by Placer Dome.

Rye

We own a 0.5% NSR royalty on the Rye property, Whias acquired in the High Desert acquisition. Rige property is located in Pershing
County, Nevada, and is operated by Barrick.

BSC

We own a 2.5% NSR royalty on the BSC property, Whi@s acquired in the High Desert acquisition. B&E property is located in Elko
County, Nevada, and operated by Nevada Pacific.Gold
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Copper Basin
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on a 60% non-vestedéstan the Copper Basin project, located in Lar@eunty, Nevada.

ICBM
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on a vested 67% intéeggiroximate) on the ICBM project, located in Lan@ounty and Humboldt County,
Nevada.

Long Peak
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Long Peak projecated in Lander County, Nevada.

Dixie Flats
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Dixie Flats peojéocated in Elko County, Nevada.

Exploration Properties

Sparrow Hawk Claims

On July 27, 2004, we acquired 31 unpatented miciaigns from Quicksilver Phenomenon, LLC on landsated southeast of the Cortez Ji
Venture area, Eureka County, Nevada. There areserves or resources identified on this projecifdsine 30, 2005.

Hoosac Project

Through the acquisition of High Desert Mineral Rases, we continue to hold a direct ownership iudpatented claims, and an indirect
interest in 192 unpatented claims through leaséseitdoosac project.

Dixie Flats Project

Through the acquisition of High Desert Mineral Rases, we continue to hold 1,280 acres of patdatedithrough an exploration agreement
at the Dixie Flats project.

Bulgarian Exploration

We own a 50% interest in Greek American Exploratitch, a Bulgarian private limited company that asagreement with the Bulgarian
Committee of Geology and Mineral Resources to congaological research and exploration on a licém&ulgaria.

Greek American Exploration joined with Phelps Dodggloration Corporation to form a Bulgarian compaamed Sofia Minerals Ltd.
Sofia Minerals is held equally by Greek Americarpxation and
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Phelps Dodge Exploration. There was no exploraditivity during fiscal year 2005 and Sofia Minerdtses not currently hold any
concession agreements with the Bulgarian Committégeology and Mineral Resources. There were nemesgs incurred in fiscal year 20
We are currently in discussions with the other owraé the companies to determine appropriate astiomissolve the Bulgarian companies.

Our Operational Information

Sales Contracts

We receive our royalties in cash, with the optiomeceive payment in-kind, except for the NVR1 fty&om the Pipeline Mining Complex,
which we currently receive in gold. We sold 2,9@mces of gold bullion in fiscal year 2005, utiligione metal trading company during the
period, at an average realized price of $417 peceuWe sold 2,907 ounces of gold bullion in figeedr 2004, utilizing one metal trading
company during the period, at an average realizieé pf $383 per ounce. We maintain trading retatiops with a number of metal trading
companies. We held no gold in inventory as of BMe2005.

Company Personnel

On August 16, 2005, we had thirteen full-time enypkes and one part-time employee located in De@@nrado. Our employees are not
subject to a labor contract or collective bargajriigreement. We consider our employee relatiobg tgood.

Consulting services, relating primarily to geologitd geophysical interpretations, and also relatrguch metallurgical, engineering, and
other technical matters as may be deemed usefaéinperation of our business, are primarily predithy independent contractors.

Regulation

Like all mining operations in the U.S., the operatof the mines that are subject to our royaltiestncomply with environmental laws and
regulations promulgated by federal, state and Igogernments including, but not limited to, the ilaal Environmental Policy Act
(“NEPA"); the Comprehensive Environmental Respoi@@mnpensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA"); the Gle Air Act; the Clean Water
Act; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Acg #me Toxic Substances Control Act. Mines locategablic lands are subject to
comprehensive regulation by either the U.S. Bufdiand Management (an agency of the U.S. Depattofahe Interior) or the U.S. Forest
Service (an agency of the U.S. Department of Adfice). The mines also are subject to regulatidrike U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA"), the U.S. Mine Safety and Health Aidistration and similar state and local agencidth@dugh we are not responsible as a
royalty owner for ensuring compliance with thesgutations, failure by the operators of the minesuhich we have royalties to comply with
applicable laws, regulations and permits can résuitjunctive action, damages and civil and crialipenalties on the operators which could
reduce production from the mines and thereby retheeoyalties we receive and negatively affectfowancial condition.
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Proposed Legislation Affecting the Mining Industry

Over the last decade, the United States Congressdmyed a number of proposed amendments to ther@eévining Law, which governs
mining claims and related activities on federatlgnn 1992, a holding fee of US$100 per claim w@sosed upon unpatented mining claims
located on federal lands. Beginning in October 1@9horatorium, on processing of new patent apiidica was approved. In addition, a
variety of proposed legislation would, among otifiémgs, change the current patenting procedumag, the rights obtained in a patent, imp
royalties on unpatented claims, and enact newmetian, environmental controls and restoration iregoents. The royalty proposal ranges
from a two percent royalty on “net profits” frommig claims to an eight percent royalty on modifigdss income/net smelter returns. The
extent of any such changes that may be enacteat we@sently known, and the potential impact omasia result of future congressional action
is difficult to predict. The majority of our roy@ts are on public lands. If enacted, the proposgitlation could adversely affect the
economics of development of operating mines onrfddmpatented mining claims. The GSR1 royaltytietpto the Pipeline Mining
Complex, operated by the Cortez Joint Venturehésanly royalty owned by us that authorizes theudédn of costs of mining law reform on
our royalty payment. The “costs of mining law refdris defined as any royalty assessment, produdérror other levy imposed on and
measured by production, to the extent that any shelnge is imposed in the future by the UnitedeStat connection with the reform of the
General Mining Law. Our financial performance cotlidrefore be materially and adversely affectegdmysage of all or pertinent parts of the
proposed legislation.

Available Information

Royal Gold maintains a web site at www.royalgoldhc®ur annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly réepon Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and all amendments to these reports éiefdirnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionisare available through the
Investor Relations section of our web site, freetadrge, as soon as reasonably practicable afteteg&onically file or furnish these reports
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Risk Factors

Our revenues are largely dependent on a singleepop

In fiscal year 2005, 85% of our revenues were @erivom royalties from the Pipeline Mining Compl&X¥e expect that revenue from our
royalties on the Pipeline Mining Complex will camtie to account for a large percentage of our rex®ituthe near future. Our success is,
therefore, dependent on the extent to which theliig Mining Complex continues to be successful, am the extent to which we are able to
acquire or create other royalty interests.

We own passive interests in mining properties, iargddifficult or impossible for us to ensure pesfies are operated in our best interest.

All of our current revenue is derived from royadtien properties operated by third parties. Thedradd a royalty interest typically has no
executive authority regarding development or openadf a mineral property. Therefore, we are natantrol of basic decisions regarding
development or operation of any of the propertiestich we hold a royalty interest, and we havatéihor no legal rights to influence those
decisions.
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Our strategy of having others operate propertiaghith we retain a royalty or other passive intepegs us generally at risk to the decisions
of others regarding all basic operating matterduiting permitting, feasibility analysis, mine dgisiand operation, processing, plant and
equipment matters, and temporary or permanent sagpeof operations, among others. These decisi@ysbe motivated by the best
interests of the operator rather than to maximigalties. Although we attempt to secure contraatigits that will permit us to protect our
interests, there can be no assurance that suds viglhalways be available or sufficient, or thwatr efforts will be successful in achieving
timely or favorable results or in affecting the ogg@ns of the properties in which we have royaitgrests in ways that would be beneficial to
our stockholders.

Decreases in prices of precious metals would reduceoyalty revenues.

The profitability of precious metals mining opeaais (and thus the value of our royalty interestbexploration properties) is directly related
to the market price of precious metals. The mapkiee of various precious metals fluctuates widselg is affected by numerous factors
beyond the control of any mining company. Thes#ofadnclude industrial and jewelry fabrication dimd, expectations with respect to the
rate of inflation, the relative strength of the UdSllar and other currencies, interest rates, galds and loans by central banks, forward sales
by gold producers, global or regional politicalpromic or banking crises, and a number of othdpfaclf the market price of precious
metals should drop, our royalty revenues would dtep. Our sliding-scale GSR1 royalty amplifiesthivhen the gold price falls below the
steps in the sliding-scale GSR1 royalty, we receil@wer royalty rate on production. In additiointhie gold price drops dramatically, we
might not be able to recover our investment in ltyyiaterests or properties. The selection of aaltyyinvestment or of a property for
exploration or development, the determination tostauct a mine and place it into production, areldadication of funds necessary to ach
such purposes are decisions that must be maddkfonge the first revenues from production will leeeived. Price fluctuations between the
time that such decisions are made and the commamtarfiproduction can have a material adverse efiethe economics of a mine, and
eliminate or have a material adverse impact orvéthee of royalty interests.

The volatility in the gold price is illustrated lifye following table, which sets forth, for the mat$ indicated, the high and low prices in U.S.
dollars per ounce of gold, based on the London RM f

Gold Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1997 $367 $28¢
1998 31& 278
1999 32¢ 258
2000 31z 262
2001 29¢ 25€
2002 34¢ 27¢
2003 41¢€ 32C
2004 454 37¢
January -August 17, 200! 447 411
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We depend on the services of our Chairman and Ehxie€utive Officer, and our President and otherdwEyployees.

We believe that our success depends on the codtsrreice of our key executive management persofetently, Stanley Dempsey is
serving as Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoard of Directors, and Tony Jensen is seragBresident. Mr. Dempsey’s
knowledge of the legal and commercial aspectsydlti@s and his extensive contacts within the ngrinmdustry give us an important
competitive advantage. Mr. Jensen has extensiverexme in mining operations. Loss of the servafddr. Dempsey, Mr. Jensen or other
key employees could jeopardize our ability to maimbur competitive position in the industry. Werently do not have key person life
insurance for any of our officers or directors.

Our revenues are subject to operational risks@fhtiming industry.

Although we are not required to pay operating ¢asis financial results are subject to all of tkedérds and risks normally associated with
developing and operating mining properties, botfttie properties where we are exploring or indlyefdr properties operated by others
where we hold royalty interests. These risks inelud

- insufficient ore reserve:
—  fluctuations in production costs that may make mgrof ore uneconomi
— declines in the price of gol
— significant environmental and other regulatoryniesbns;
—  labor disputes
—  geological problems
—  pit walls or tailings dam failure:
—  natural catastrophes such as floods or earthquahke
—  the risk of injury to persons, property or the @amiment.
Operating cost increases can have a negative efificitte value of and income from our royalty intéseand may cause an operator to curtail,

delay or close operations at a mine site.

Estimates of reserves and mineralization by theaipes of mines in which we have royalty interests subject to significant estimates which
can change.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimaroven and probable reserves and mineralizatizluding many factors beyond our
control or that of the operators of mineral projsrin which we have a royalty interest. Resertienades on our royalty interests are prepi
by the operators of the mining properties, and waat participate in the preparation of such repdrhe estimation of reserves and of other
mineralization is a subjective process and the raoyuof any such estimates is a function of thdityuaf available data and of engineering
and geological interpretation and judgment. Re®fltdrilling, metallurgical testing and producticamd the evaluation of mine plans
subsequent to the date of any estimate may causéoreof such estimates. The volume and gradesénves recovered and rates of
production may be less than anticipated. Assumptaiiout prices are subject to great uncertaintyttamdold price has fluctuated widely in
the past. Declines in the market price of goldtbeo precious
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metals also may render reserves or mineralizatoaining relatively lower grades of ore uneconotoiexploit. Changes in operating and
capital costs and other factors including shomateperating factors, such as the need for sequeiet@lopment of ore bodies and the
processing of new or different ore grades, may riahgand adversely affect reserves.

We may be unable to acquire additional royaltyregeés.

Our future success depends upon our ability toisegayalty interests to replace depleting reseavebto diversify our royalty portfolio. We
anticipate that most of our revenues will be detifrem royalty interests that we acquire or fingnmegher than through exploration and
development of properties. In addition, we face petition in the acquisition of royalty interestbwle are unable to successfully acquire
additional royalties, the reserves on propertigsecully covered by our royalties will decline asee/es are mined.

Anticipated federal legislation could decreaseroyalty revenues.

In recent years, the U.S. Congress has considemachher of proposed major revisions of the Gendiaing Law, which governs the
creation and possession of mining claims and relatgivities on federal public lands in the Unit&tdtes. It is possible that another bill may
be introduced in the Congress and it is possildeamew law could be enacted. If and when a navingilaw is enacted, it might impose a
royalty upon production of minerals from federaida and might contain new requirements for mined l@clamation, and similar
environmental control and reclamation measuragnitains unclear to what extent new legislation rifégct existing mining claims or
operations, but it could raise the cost of minipgmtions, perhaps materially affecting operatacs@ur royalty revenue. The effect of any
revision of the General Mining Law on royalty irgsts in the United States cannot be determinedwsiaely until such revision, if any, is
enacted. The majority of our interests are on pubhds. If a royalty, assessment, production teotleer levy imposed on and measured by
production is charged to the operator at the Ripdilining Complex, the amount of that charge wdéddeducted from gross proceeds for
calculation of our two sliding-scale GSR royalties.

The mining industry is subject to significant emvimental risks.

Mining is subject to potential risks and liabilgiassociated with pollution of the environment tredisposal of waste products occurring
result of mineral exploration and production. Laavel regulations in the United States and abroashited to ensure the protection of the
environment are constantly changing and generadljpacoming more restrictive and costly. Insuraagainst environmental risks (including
potential liability for pollution or other hazards a result of the disposal of waste products oiccufrom exploration and production) is not
generally available to the companies within theingrindustry, such as the operators of the minesghith we hold a royalty interest, at a
reasonable price. If an operator is forced to irsignificant costs to comply with environmentalukdions or becomes subject to
environmental restrictions that limit its ability tontinue or expand operations, it could reducer@yalty revenues. To the extent that we
become subject to environmental liabilities for timee period during which we were operating proigsttthe satisfaction of any liabilities
would reduce funds otherwise available to us anddcbhave a material adverse effect on our finaraaldition and results of operations.

In September 2002, we settled a claim by the ER#nat)Royal Gold, along with 92 other potentialdgponsible parties, known as PRPs.
EPA's allegation was based on the disposal of atlgg
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hazardous petroleum exploration wastes at the desResources Hazardous Waste Site by our predagédsyal Resources, Inc., during
1983 and 1984. Although we do not currently expedbcur additional costs in connection with thigim, the State of California has notified
us and the other parties who participated in thieseent that it will seek to recover response £0ate do not know and cannot predict the
amount of the estimated costs the State would weedcover but, if we are compelled to pay a lamge, it could materially adversely affect
our operations. If the State agrees to a volumathlication among the parties, our portion of ihbility would be 0.438% of any settlement
amount. Please see Part |, Item 3. “Legal ProcgediCasmalia Resources Hazardous Waste Dispasdl @ithis Annual Report on Form
10-K.

If title to properties are not properly maintain®dthe operators, our royalty revenues may be dseck

The validity of unpatented mining claims, which stitute a significant portion of the propertieswanich we hold royalties in the United
States, is often uncertain and such validity isaglsvsubject to contest. Unpatented mining claimmggenerally considered subject to greater
title risk than patented mining claims, or realgedy interests that are owned in fee simple.

Foreign operations are subject to many risks.

Our foreign activities are subject to the risksmally associated with conducting business in fareiguntries. This includes exchange
controls and currency fluctuations, limitationsrepatriation of earnings, foreign taxation, foregrvironmental laws and enforcement,
expropriation or nationalization of property, lalppactices and disputes, and uncertain politicdl@sonomic environments. There are also
risks of war and civil disturbances, as well asottisks that could cause exploration or develogrdéficulties or stoppages, restrict the
movement of funds or result in the deprivationassl of contract rights or the taking of propertyniagionalization or expropriation, without
fair compensation. Exploration licenses granteddaye foreign countries, like Bulgaria, do not im&uhe right to mine. Each country has
discretion in determining whether to grant a licetsmine. If an operator cannot secure a minicgnise following exploration of a property,
the value of our royalty interest would be negdyivadfected. Foreign operations could also be agklgrimpacted by laws and policies of the
United States affecting foreign trade, investment &axation. We currently have interests in prgeestArgentina and Russia. We also pursue
precious metal royalty acquisitions or developrmagortunities in other parts of the world, inclugli@anada, Australia, other Republics of
the former Soviet Union, Asia, Africa and South Aioa.

We are subject to the considerations and riskpefaiing in Russia. The economy of the Russianraéida continues to display
characteristics of an emerging market. These cleistics include, but are not limited to, the ésige of a currency that is not freely
convertible outside of the country, extensive auckecontrols and high inflation. The prospectsfidure economic stability in the Russian
Federation are largely dependent upon the effawtis® of economic measures undertaken by the goeatntogether with legal, regulatory
and political developments.

Russian laws, licenses and permits have beentateaf change and new laws may be given a retvaageffect. It is also not unusual in the
context of dispute resolution in Russia for part@esse the uncertainty in the Russian legal enwrent as leverage in business negotiations.
In addition, Russian tax legislation is subjectaoying interpretations and constant change. Furthe interpretation of tax legislation by tax
authorities as applied to the transactions andities of our Russian operations may not coincid# that of management. As a result,
transactions may be challenged by tax authoritiels a
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our Russian operations may be assessed additeores, tpenalties and interest, which could be s@mif. The periods remain open to review
by the tax authorities for three years.

The Company is subject to risks relating to an wiage or unpredictable political and economic eamment in Argentina. In the short term,
significant macroeconomic instability in the regisrexpected to negatively impact the businessrenwient and may lead to longer term
changes in the national approaches taken to owipdrgHoreign companies of natural resources. Atigerhas experienced political
instability, currency value fluctuations and chasmgebanking regulations in recent years. Continoredew instability, fluctuations or
regulation changes could adversely affect our regerirom Argentina, including revenues from the tdamine.

Our stock price may continue to be volatile andidalecline.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuatedi may decline in the future. The high and lowsitlg sale prices of our common stock
were $28.42 and $10.04 in fiscal year 2003, $24r6#$11.34 in fiscal year 2004 and $20.31 and ®1iB.@iscal year 2005. The fluctuation
of the market price of our common stock has betctfd by many factors that are beyond our conimoluding:

—  market price of gold

- interest rates

—  expectations regarding inflatio

—  ability of operators to produce precious metals @enklop new reserve
—  currency values

—  general stock market conditions; ¢

— global and regional political and economic conditipas well as many other factc

We may change our dividend policy.

We have declared a cash dividend on our commok $to@ach fiscal year beginning in fiscal year @00ur board of directors has discre
in determining whether to declare a dividend bamed number of factors, including prevailing gotitps, economic market conditions and
funding requirements for future opportunities oergiions. If our board of directors declines toldecdividends in the future, or reduces the
current dividend level, our stock price could falhd the success of an investment in our commark stould depend solely upon any future
stock price appreciation in value.

Certain antitakeover provisions could delay or prevent a thiady from acquiring us.

Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation magke it more difficult for third parties to acquizentrol of Royal Gold or to remove
management. Some of these provisions are:

—  The board of directors is permitted to issueqnred stock that has rights senior to the commackstithout shareholder approval;
and

—  There are three classes of directors serving staggthre-year terms
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We are also subject to the business combinatiovigioms of Delaware law that could delay, detep@vent a change in control. In addition,
we have adopted a Stockholder’s Rights Plan thpbgas significant penalties upon a person or gtieaipacquires 15% or more of our
outstanding common stock without the approval eftibard of directors. Any of these measures cowddant a third party from pursuing an
acquisition of our Company, even if shareholdetiee the acquisition is in their best interests.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Casmalia Resources Hazardous Waste Disposal Site

On March 24, 2000, the EPA notified Royal Gold &dother entities that they were considered pa#yntiesponsible parties (“PRP<gihde!
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compengsand Liability Act of 1980, as amended (“Suped”), at the Casmalia Resources
Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “Site”) in S&#ebara County, California. EPA’s allegation tRatyal Gold was a PRP was based on
the disposal of allegedly hazardous petroleum eafitlm wastes at the Site by Royal Gold’s predeme$toyal Resources, Inc., during 1983
and 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 2B@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP griaugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States obAca intending to settle their liability for thenlled States of America’s past and future
clean-up costs incurred at the Site. Based on thammal volume of allegedly hazardous waste that&®esources, Inc. disposed of at the
Site, our share of the $25.3 million settlement anmtavas $107,858, which we deposited into the @sawcount that the PRP group set up
that purpose in January 2002. The funds were patidet United States of America on May 9, 2003. Uhéed States of America may only
pursue Royal Gold and the other PRPs for additiolean-up costs if the United States of Americataltclean-up costs at the Site
significantly exceed the expected cost of approsétyeb272 million. We believe this to be a remotesgibility; therefore, we consider our
potential liability to the United States of Amerizabe resolved.

The Partial Consent Decree does not resolve Rogtl €potential liability to the State of Califom(the “State”) for its response costs or for
natural resource damages arising from the Site SEate has not expressed any interest in purs@ingal resource damages. However, on
October 1, 2002, the State notified Royal Gold #redrest of the PRP group that participated insgtdement with the United States of
America that the State would be seeking responses ¢otaling approximately $12.5 million from theltnis not known what portion of these
costs the State expects to recover from this PRBpgin settlement. If the State agrees to a voltimaliocation, we will be liable for 0.438%
of any settlement amount. However, we expect thasbare of liability will be completely covered by$15 million, zero-deductible
insurance policy that the PRP group purchased fsgaty to protect itself from claims such as thabught by the State.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitylad during the quarter ended June 30, 2005. Armeating results will be described
Part Il, Item 4 of our report that will be filed drorm 10-Q, for the quarter ending December 315200
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Current Stockholders

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg NatiotakSMarket (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol “RGLD” aod the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol “RGL.” The following table shovire thigh and low sales prices, in U.S. dollarsttfiercommon stock on Nasdag, for each
quarter since July 1, 2003.

Sales Price

Fiscal Year: High Low
2004 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej- 2003) $25.3¢ $18.0¢
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., D& 2003) $23.4¢ $17.5¢

Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2004) $21.7¢ $16.0C

Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2004) $18.3( $11.07

2005 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sef— 2004) $17.11 $12.3(
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De 2004) $19.0: $14.9¢

Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2005) $19.9¢ $15.3¢

Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2005) $20.5( $15.9¢

As of August 17, 2005, there were approximately 8@reholders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

For calendar year 2005, we declared an annualetididf $0.20 per share of common stock, in fourtguly payments of $0.05 each. We
paid the first payment of $0.05 per share on Janar 2005, to shareholders of record at the abdbdrisiness on January 7, 2005. We paid
the second payment of $0.05 per share on Apri2@@5, to shareholders of record at the close ahbas on April 8, 2005. We paid the third
payment of $0.05 on July 22, 2005 to shareholdereaord at the close of business on July 8, 2005 anticipate paying the fourth payment
of $0.05 on October 21, 2005, to shareholdersawirckat the close of business on October 7, 2005.

For calendar 2004, we declared an annual dividé$@.45 per share of common stock, in four quaytpayments of $0.0375 each. We paid
the first payment of $0.0375 per share on Janu@y 2004, to shareholders of record at the closmrisiness on January 2, 2004. We paid the
second payment of $0.0375 per share on April 1842 shareholders of record at the close of lassion April 2, 2004. We paid the third
payment of $0.0375 on July 16, 2004 to shareholoferscord at the close of business on July 2, 2004 paid the fourth payment of $0.0375
on October 15, 2004, to shareholders of record

29




Table of Contents

at the close of business on October 1, 2004. Boalfiyear 2003, we declared an annual dividenddfGsper share of common stock, in two
semi-annual payments of $0.05 each. We paid thedayment of $0.05 per share on January 17, 20@Bareholders of record at the close
of business on January 3, 2003. We paid the sepaymient of $0.05 per share on July 18, 2003, toesioéders of record at the close of
business on July 3, 2003.

We currently plan to sustain a dividend on a caderygar basis, subject to the discretion of thedoédirectors. However, our board of
directors may determine not to declare a dividesmgeld on a number of factors including the goldepconomic and market conditions, and
the financial needs of opportunities that mighseuiin the future.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not make any unregistered sales of our g@suduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Selected Statements of Operations Data

For The Years Ended June .

Amounts in thousands, except per share 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Royalty revenut $25,30: 21,35: $15,78¢ $12,32! $ 5,96
Exploration and business developm 1,85¢ 1,392 1,23: 61¢ 774
General and administrative expel 3,541 2,92z 1,96¢ 1,87t 1,71€
Non-cash employee stock option compensation

expense 20¢ — — 1,48¢ —
Depreciation and depletic 3,20t 3,314 2,85¢ 2,28¢ 1,271
Impairment of mining asse — — 16€ — 49(
Current and deferred tax expense (ben 4,102 3,654 1,88t (6,777) 23,23
Net income 11,45 8,87: 6,752 10,69¢ 1,13¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.5t 0.42 $ 0.34 $ 0.6C $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.5¢ 0.4z $ 0.3: $ 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢
Dividends declared per she $ 0.2C 0.1t $ 0.1C $ 0.07¢ $ 0.0f

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Amounts in thousanc 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Total asset $102,31¢ $93,52: $86,35¢ $29,59( $17,26:
Working capital 53,33( 49,46( 34,29¢ 11,99( 4,431
Long-term obligations 97 10z 112 121 127
Deferred tax liability 7,58¢ 8,07¢ 8,74 — —
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview
Royal Gold, Inc., together with its subsidiariesengaged in the business of acquiring and manggégjous metals royalties.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. Royalties
are passive (non-operating) interests in mininggotse that provide the right to revenue from theigut after deducting specified costs, if any.
We also explore and develop properties thoughbtdain precious metals and seek to obtain royatgrésts and other carried ownership
interests in these properties through the subséduearsfer of interests to other mining companis. expect that substantially all of our
revenues will continue to be derived from royattierests. We do not conduct mining operationsiattiime. During the 2005 fiscal year, we
focused on the management of our existing royaligrests, the acquisition of royalty interests, #ircreation of royalty interests through
financing and exploration.

Our financial results are closely tied to the p¢gold. During the 2005 fiscal year, the pricegofd averaged $422 per ounce compared with
an average price of $389 per ounce for the 20@4lfiear. As a result of the increased gold poce,GSR1 sliding-scale royalty at the
Pipeline Mining Complex (discussed below) paid aitates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5% compared winpnts calculated at rates ranging
from 3.4% to 4.0% during the prior year. This irage in our realized sliding-scale royalty rate dbaoted to revenues of $25,302,332 during
the 2005 fiscal year, compared with revenues of383,071 during the 2004 fiscal year.

Our principal mineral property interests are:
—  two slidin¢-scale GSR royalty interes:
— one fixed GSR royalty interest; a
— one net value royalty intere:

all relating to a mining complex known as the RipeMining Complex, which includes the Pipeline &uwlith Pipeline gold deposits,
operated by the Cortez Joint Venture.

- one 1.8% NSR royalty on the majority of the LéleviProject, which includes the development stagewille underground mine and a
portion of the Leeville South (formerly known asrffaEast) mine, operated by Newmont; ¢

- one 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims, which c®weportion of the Betze-Post open pit mine, atGoldstrike operation operated
by Barrick.

Our other producing royalty interests include &b%#no 3.5% NSR sliding-scale royalty interest cavgma portion of the Bald Mountain
mine, operated by Placer Dome U.S. Inc. The slidicgle royalty increases or decreases with the gode, adjusted by the 1986 Producer
Price Index. Our royalty rate would increase to @%und a gold price of $500 per ounce. We also @&f6 NSR royalty on a number of
properties in Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, idiclg the Martha silver mine, which is operated lme@r d’Alene.
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On October 14, 2004, we purchased two royalty @sisrin the Troy underground silver and copper noperated by Revett, located in
northeastern Montana. The first royalty is a prdigucpayment equivalent to a 7.0% GSR royalty frairmetals and products produced and
sold from the Troy mine. As reported by Revetthat time of the transaction, total contained proaed probable reserves at the Troy mine
were 13.6 million ounces of silver and 113 millipounds of copper. The GSR royalty will extend ueiiher cumulative production of
approximately 9.9 million ounces of silver and 8hiflion pounds of copper, or we receive $10.5 imilin cumulative payments, whichever
occurs first. The second royalty is a Perpetuailtgyalso from the Troy mine, which begins at 6.@fcany production in excess of

11.0 million ounces of silver and 94.1 million palsnof copper, and steps down to a perpetual 2% @ftaulative production has exceeded
12.7 million ounces of silver and 108.2 million pais of copper.

Estimates received from the mine operators indit#tat gold production, attributable to our royattterests, for calendar year 2005 is
expected to be approximately 860,000 ounces fraPtpeline Mining Complex, 90,000 ounces from tlee\ille South mine and 51,000
from the Leeville North mine at the Leeville Prdjeg74,000 ounces from the SJ Claims and 40,0008es=uftom the Bald Mountain mine. T
Martha silver mine is expected to produce 1.7 orillounces of silver attributable to our royaltyeinast for the 2005 calendar year. The Troy
mine is expected to produce 2.0 million ouncedleésand 17.0 million pounds of copper attributahbb our royalty interest for the 2005
calendar year. During the first six months of cdkamnyear 2005, the mine operators have reportedlption attributable to our royalty
interests of 505,451 ounces from the Pipeline Mjriiomplex, 36,630 ounces from the Leeville Southen241,244 ounces from the SJ
Claims and 14,281 ounces from the Bald MountainemiRevett reported that the Troy mine producedBE2punces of silver and 4.6 milli
pounds of copper during the first six months otadhar year 2005.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements, infeonity with accounting principles generally acasgpin the United States of America,
requires management to make estimates and assasplioese estimates and assumptions affect thetedpmmounts of assets and liabiliti
at the date of the financial statements, as wahaseported amount of revenues and expensegydinérreporting period.

Our most critical accounting estimates relate toamsumptions regarding future gold prices ancegtinates of reserves and recoveries of
mine operators. We rely on reserve estimates regdny the operators on the properties in which saxehoyalty interests. These estimates
and the underlying assumptions affect the poteirtiphirments of long-lived assets and the abilitygalize income tax benefits associated
with deferred tax assets. These estimates and asismsalso affect the rate at which we charge elgation and amortization to earnings. On
an ongoing basis, management evaluates these esiarad assumptions; however, actual amounts clifféd from these estimates and
assumptions. The reserves reported by Placer Dacth&lawmont as of December 31, 2004, were basedyoidaprice of $350 per ounce.
The reserves reported by Barrick as of Decembe2@14, were based on a gold price of $375.

We based our deferred tax asset valuation on a @856unce gold price, as of June 30, 2005. Ifdhg-term gold price is substantially
lower, these estimates would need to change and oesult in material adverse write-offs of assetd the need to establish a valuation
allowance against the deferred tax asset.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2005, we had current assets of $58238,0mpared to current liabilities of $2,898,2@84d current ratio of 19 to 1. This
compares to current assets of $51,901,175 andntuiabilities of $2,441,434 at June 30, 2004, Hésg in a current ratio of 21 to 1. The
decrease in our current ratio between periodstesspkimarily from an increase in our federal ineotax payable, which was due to an
increase in our fiscal year 2005 royalty revenmel, @n increase in our dividends payable. We coatinthave no long-term debt.

During fiscal year 2005, liquidity needs were mrent $25,302,332 in royalty revenues, our availableh resources, proceeds from issuance
of stock of approximately $973,000, and interest atiher income of $834,136.

We have a $10 million line of credit from HSBC BadBA that may be used to acquire producing royal#eny loan under the line of credit
will be secured by a mortgage on our GSR3 roydltha Pipeline Mining Complex, and by a securitiemast in the proceeds from any of our
royalties at the Pipeline Mining Complex. Any asgaiirchased with the line of credit will also seagecollateral. During our second fiscal
quarter of 2005, we extended the maturity dateuofioe of credit through June 30, 2006. As of JBAe2005, no funds have been drawn
under the line of credit.

We currently anticipate that current financial nes@s and funds generated from operations willdegjaate to cover anticipated expenditures
for general and administrative expenses, explaraitd business development costs, and capital ditpess for fiscal year 2005 and beyond.
Our current financial resources are available dgalty acquisitions and to fund dividends. In ter of a substantial acquisition, we could
seek additional debt or equity financing. We mapaleek additional funding from time to time as agggment deems appropriate.

Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2005ar®llows:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar More thar
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating lease $546,70: $115,71: $367,26. $63,72¢ $
Long-term retirement obligatio 96,63¢ 26,40( 52,80( 17,43¢ -
Total $643,33 $142,11: $420,06: $81,16( $

For information on our contractual obligations, exe 7 to the Consolidated Financial StatementieuRart I, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this AnnegldR on Form 10-K. Royal Gold believes it will &le to fund all existing obligations
from net cash provided by operating activities.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005, Compared withaFiéear Ended June 30, 2004

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we redandeincome of $11,453,715, or $0.55 per basiceshad $0.54 per diluted share, as
compared to net income of $8,871,679, or $0.43psit share and $0.42 per diluted share, for swalfiyear ended June 30, 2004.

For fiscal year 2005, we received total royaltyemwes of $25,302,332, at an average gold pricd22 $er ounce. Royalty revenues included
$21,392,636 from the Pipeline Mining Complex, $8052 from the SJ Claims, $763,012 from LeevilleitBqformerly Carlin East mine),
$749,362 from the Troy mine, $208,103 from Bald Mizin, and $163,167 from the Martha mine. Thesenags were attributed to our st

of gold production of 973,602 ounces from the RipeeMining Complex, 531,342 ounces from the SJrg$ai93,180 ounces from Leeville
South, and 28,037 ounces from Bald Mountain, asaseb22,145 ounces of silver and 4.6 million paioficopper from the Troy mine.
Martha mine does not provide production data. Rerfiscal year ended June 30, 2004, we receivaetirmialty revenues of $21,353,071, at
an average gold price of $389 per ounce, of whikh #37,676 was attributed to our royalties fromPligeline Mining Complex. This

increase in royalty revenue compared with fiscalry@004 resulted from a higher sliding-scale rgyedte from the Pipeline Mining Complex
due to a higher gold price in fiscal year 2005, #redaddition of revenues from the acquired Trogemoyalties.

Cost of operations increased to $1,830,504 fofitlwal year ended June 30, 2005, compared to $;861Zor the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004, primarily related to an increase in Nevadgoneceeds tax expenditures of approximately $181,,&hich is associated with increased
royalty revenues. Nevada net proceeds of mines tapeepaid on all royalties received which arelatted to production in Nevada, at a rate
of 5% of gross cash receipts. The increase isdusdo an increase in consulting fees, which welaed to the Crossroads project at the
Cortez Joint Venture.

General and administrative expenses increased,5d$%81 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 208%pared to $2,923,289 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004, primarily due to incitaseounting and consulting fees of approximat841$000. The increased accounting
consulting fees were the result of Sarbanes-Oxbeyptiance work. Increases in employee related afsapproximately $124,000 along with
an increase in costs for investor relations of apipnately $99,000 also contributed to the incraasgeneral and administrative expenses.

Exploration and business development expensesasedeto $1,858,920 for the fiscal year ended JAn2@5, compared to $1,391,944 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, primarilytduen increase in employee related costs allodatedsiness development of approximately
$778,000, due to increased business developmenitiastthroughout the year. This increase wasetffmrtially by a decrease in consulting
services for business development activities of@gmately $353,000.

Depreciation and depletion decreased to $3,204@8#e fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, compar&3313,953 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004, primarily due to decreases in depleates for our GSR3, NVR1, Bald Mountain, SJiilg and Leeville South interests in
the current fiscal year, which were due to increasgroven and probable reserves attributableito@yalty interests. These decreases were
partially offset by increased production at theeRipe Mining Complex along with additional depletifor the newly acquired GSR royalty at
the Troy mine.

As discussed in Note 7 in the accompanying Noté&3oosolidated Financial Statements, we recordegcash employee stock compensation
expense of $205,301 for the fiscal year ended 26@%pared to
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$0 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. Theoash compensation expense recorded during thedpepresents amortization, based on
the employees’ service period, of the fair valu¢hef Restricted Stock (as discussed in Note 8eatitompanying Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements) issued pursuant to the 2@04iklus Long-Term Incentive Plan at the issuanaa@asurement date.

Interest and other income increased to $834,13théofiscal year ended June 30, 2005, compared48,$81 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004, primarily due to higher interestsand an increase in funds available for invesiirey the prior year.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we rezedrcurrent and deferred tax expense totaling 482 compared with $3,654,358 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. This resulted iefiective tax rate of 26.4% in the current pericampared with 29.2% in the prior period.
The decrease in the effective tax rate resultet fo increase in allowable percentage depletionat&mhs associated with higher revenue
from our GSR1 royalty during the period, and tHease of the valuation allowance associated witstile of available for sale securities of
approximately $320,000 during the period.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004, Compared wittaFiéear Ended June 30, 2003

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, we redandeincome of $8,871,679, or $0.43 per basicestas compared to net income of
$6,752,346, or $0.34 per basic share, for thelfigear ended June 30, 2003.

For fiscal year 2004, we received total royaltyenewes of $21,353,071, at an average gold pric888 $er ounce. Royalty revenues included
$18,737,676 from the Pipeline Mining Complex, $B829 from the SJ Claims, $729,717 from the Lee\8lbuth, $230,713 from Bald
Mountain, and $256,336 from the Martha mine. Thresenues were attributed to our share of gold prolu of 973,220 ounces from the
Pipeline Mining Complex, 401,913 ounces from the&C&lms, 105,505 ounces from the Leeville Southn(kerly the Carlin East mine), and
33,894 ounces from Bald Mountain. Martha mine dossprovide production data. For the fiscal yeateehJune 30, 2003, we received total
royalty revenues of $15,788,212, at an average gade of $334 per ounce, of which $13,953,232 atasbuted to our royalties from the
Pipeline Mining Complex. This increase in royakyenue compared with fiscal 2003 resulted fromghéni slidingscale royalty rate from tt
Pipeline Mining Complex due to a higher gold priicdiscal year 2004, and the addition of revenuemfthe acquired SJ Claims and the
Leeville South royalties. The royalties from the@dims and the Leeville Project represent revemoieapproximately seven months of
production in fiscal year 2003, whereas twelve rhertf related production was recognized in fis€dl2

Cost of operations increased to $1,512,867 fofisiwal year ended June 30, 2004, compared to $89@6or the fiscal year ended June 30,
2003, primarily related to an increase in Nevadagpneceeds tax expenditures of approximately $3XB#ssociated with the increased roy
revenues. Nevada net proceeds of mines taxes iaremall royalties received which are attributegtoduction in Nevada, at a rate of 5% of
gross cash receipts. Costs of operations assodidtie@pproximately twelve months of activity fraime acquired SJ Claims and Leeville
Project royalties also contributed to the increase.

General and administrative expenses increased, 82%$289 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 200hpared to $1,966,283 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2003, primarily due to incebatafing levels, costs associated with our stegifstration statements, and increa
investor relations costs of approximately $365,829,000, and $171,000, respectively.
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Exploration and business development expensesasedeto $1,391,944 for the fiscal year ended JOn2@4, compared to $1,232,853 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, primarily tduexpenditures related to business developmeivitas of approximately $131,000.

Depreciation and depletion increased to $3,313f8b6®e fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, compar&®@ 854,839 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, primarily due to increased prodadtiom Leeville South (formerly the Carlin East mjrand SJ Claims royalty interests,
resulting in increased depletion of approximate3y&000. These increases were partiallyseffby decreases in depletion rates for our G
NVR1 and Bald Mountain interests in the currentdisyear.

Interest and other income increased to $442,18théofiscal year ended June 30, 2004, compare@88,857 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, primarily due to an increase instalde funds, partially offset by lower interedesa

Deferred tax expense increased to $2,772,115 éofishal year ended June 30, 2004, compared t®81033 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003. Approximately $690,000 of the inseeaas attributable to the tax effect of increasedme before income taxes of
$12,526,037 during fiscal 2004 compared with $8,638 during fiscal 2003. These increases were tiffs@n increase in excess depletio
$291,000 during the fiscal year.

Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary “Safe Harbor” Statement under the Peigcurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Withetbxception of historical matters, the
matters discussed in this report are forward-loglstatements that involve risks and uncertaintias ¢ould cause actual results to differ
materially from projections or estimates contaihecein. Such forward-looking statements includeestants regarding projected gold and
silver production, reserves and mineralization ingafrom the operators of our royalty propert@swell as settlement of the Casmalia
matter, the potential need for additional fundingdcquisitions, our future capital commitments aod expectation that substantially all our
revenues will be derived from royalty interestsctbas that could cause actual results to differemally from these forward-looking
statements include, among others, changes in peai@tals prices, decisions and activities of therators of our royalty properties,
unanticipated grade, geological, metallurgical cpssing or other problems at these properties,ggin project parameters as plans of the
operators are refined, economic and market comdififuture financial needs, federal or state lagjish governing us or the operators, the
availability of acquisitions, and the ultimate dgual liability, if any, to the State of Califormin connection with the Casmalia matter, as
as other factors described elsewhere in this reptwst of these factors are beyond our abilityreedict or control. We disclaim any obligati
to update any forward-looking statement made heRé@aders are cautioned not to put undue relianderward-looking statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB  OUT MARKET RISK

The market price of various precious metals vasieiely and is affected by numerous factors beyamdoontrol. Please see “Risk Factors —
Decreases in prices of precious metals would reduceoyalty revenues,” under Part |, Item 1. &Business and Properties” of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for more information on facttvat can affect gold prices.

The royalties we receive can fluctuate significamtlth changes in the market price of precious teefhis could happen because our royalty
rates are tied to the price of gold or becausegeators of our royalty properties may curtaicease mining operations if the gold price falls
significantly. During the fiscal year ended June 3005, we reported royalty revenues of $25,302,882 an average gold price for the
period of $422 per ounce. The GSR1 royalty, orRipeline Mining Complex, which produced the majpof our revenues for the period, i
sliding-scale royalty with variable royalty rategs based on the average London PM gold pricénéopériod. For the fiscal year, if the price
of gold had averaged higher or lower by $20 perceymhich includes a one price step in GSR1), weltvbave recorded an increase in
revenues of approximately $2.2 million or a decegasevenues of approximately $2.1 million. Duéhe set price steps in the GSR1 roy:

it is not possible to extrapolate these effecta tinear basis.

We receive royalties from the NVR1 royalty on thipéfine Mining Complex in gold, and the value ofsthoyalty therefore depends on the
price of gold. We sold 2,905 ounces of gold bullietiscal year 2005, at an average realized pfc® 17 per ounce, and 2,907 ounces of
gold bullion in fiscal year 2004, at an averagdized price of $383 per ounce.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules 13&({f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Adi9®4, as amended. Our internal control over firgreporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes

Management assessed the effectiveness of our@hiawntrol over financial reporting as of June 3005. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Caeendof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwam@@ssion (COSO) internal
Control-Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment and those criteria, margsdg concluded that, as of June 30, 2005, oumniate
control over financial reporting is effective.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, the registered pabbounting firm that audited the financial statetaéncluded in this annual report, has
also audited management’s assessment of the gffaetis of the Company’s internal control over faalreporting as of June 30, 2005 and
the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal corarar financial reporting as of June 30, 2005 tated in their report, which is included
herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Royal Gold, Inc:

We have completed an integrated audit of Royal Galel’'s 2005 consolidated financial statements @itk internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2005 and audits of itst20@ 2003 consolidated financial statements ior@emnce with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@sj: opinions, based on our audits, are preseraletvb

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index, present fairlyall material respects, the financial
position of Royal Gold, Inc. at June 30, 2005 af@i@4 and the results of its operations and its flasls for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2005 in conformity with aotiog principles generally accepted in the Unitéat& of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Companyanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these financial statements be
on our audits. We conducted our audits of thedersiants in accordance with the standards of théd@bmpany Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirentbgilan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabdeirance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit afifinancial statements includes examiningadest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfisamt estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statementgmégtion. We believe that our audits provide ageable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmentydsed in Management's Report on Internal ControltQaieancial Reporting appearing
under Item 8, that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial reporting as oh@w0, 2005 based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO), is
fairly stated, in all material respects, basedmms¢ criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the @amy maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reportiag of June 30, 2005, based on criteria establishietiernal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the COSO. The Company’s managementpsmeible for maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting. Our respdmildty is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectivenéss @bmpany’s internal control over financial repm based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internal control over finaheceporting in accordance with the standardsefRublic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirentbgilan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabéerrance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. An audit of intéc@ntrol
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over financial reporting includes obtaining an urstiending of internal control over financial repog;, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgcfifeness of internal control, and performing soitter procedures as we consider
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(ibiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thenGiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
August 19, 2005
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Current asset:
Cash and equivalen
Royalty receivable
Deferred tax asse
Prepaid expenses and otl

Total current asse

Royalty interests in mineral properties, net (ot
Available for sale securities (notes 2 anc
Deferred tax asse

Other asset

Total asset

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Federal income taxes payal
Dividend payable
Accrued compensatic
Other

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other long term liabilitie:
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7 anc
Stockholder equity

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of June 30,

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 40,000sb@0es; issued 21,258,576 and 21,012,583

shares, respective
Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inct

Deferred compensatic
Accumulated defici
Treasury stock, at cost (229,224 sha

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

2005 2004
$ 48,840,37  $ 44,800,90
6,601,32! 5,221,30
452,73 1,671,30!
333,88: 207,66
56,228,31 51,901,17
44,817,24 40,325,61
554,81 420,23
160,41° 306,56
557,77 568,22
$102,318,55  $ 93,521,81
$ 1,140,500 $ 1,232,53
253,49 —
1,050,62 779,37
278,50( 200,00
175,09! 229 51t
2,898,22i 2,441,43.
7,586,40: 8,078,97!
96,63+ 103,08
10,581,26 10,623,49
212,58t 210,12
104,163,51 102,019,89
(284,920 28,09’
(524,65¢) —
(10,732,35)  (18,262,92)
(1,096,87) (1,096,87)
91,737,29 82,898,31
$102,318,55  $ 93,521,81

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome
For the Years Ended June 30,

Royalty revenue

Costs and expens
Costs of operation
General and administrati
Exploration and business developm
Impairment of royalty interests in mineral propes
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Non-cash employee stock compensation exp

Total costs and expens
Gain on sale of other assi
Operating incom:

Interest and other incon

Gain on sale of available for sale securi
Interest and other expen

Income before income tax

Current tax expense (note
Deferred tax expense (note
Net income

Adjustments to other comprehensive incc
Unrealized change in market value of availablestde securities, net of t:
Realization of the change in market value on shkevailable for sale securities,
net of tax

Comprehensive incorr

Basic earnings per share (note
Basic weighted average shares outstan

Diluted earnings per share (note
Diluted weighted average shares outstan

2005 2004 2003
$25,302,33  $21,353,07  $15,788,21
1,830,50- 1,512,86 1,346,89
3,540,58; 2,923,28! 1,966,28:
1,858,92 1,391,94 1,232,85:
— — 165,65¢
3,204,98. 3,313,95: 2,854,83!
205,30 — —
10,640,29 9,142,05. 7,566,51!
— — 158,39¢
14,662,04 12,211,01 8,380,08!
834,13 442,18: 383,95°
163,57 — —
(103,579 (127,162) (126,96¢)
15,556,17 12,526,03 8,637,07
(3,047,55) (882,242 (176,67
(1,054,91) (2,772,11) (1,708,05)
$11453,71  $ 887167  $ 6,752,34
(208,329 (36,866 (120,01
(104,68 — —
$11,14069  $ 8,834,8L  $ 6,632,32
$ 058  $ 0.4:  $ 0.34
20,875,95 20,760,45 19,795,94
$ 05/ $ 04:  $ 0.3¢
21,070,79 21,110,52 20,231,63

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytlierYears Ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Share Paid-In Comprehensive Deferred Accumulated Treasury Stocl Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss Compensatiol Deficit Shares Amount Equity
Balance at June 30, 20 18,279,84 $182,79¢ $ 57,389,22 $184,98: $ — $(29,492,39) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $27,167,73
Issuance of common stock f
Acquisition of High Deser 1,412,22! 14,12 28,116,75 28,130,87
Stock issuance 1,000,00t 10,00¢ 14,115,00 14,125,00
Exercise of options and
other 191,84! 1,91¢ 991,07: 992,99(
Net income and comprehensi
income for the year ended
June 30, 200 (120,019 6,752,341 6,632,32!
Dividends (2,056,421 (2,056,421
Balance at June 30, 20 20,883,91 $208,83¢ $100,612,04 $ 64,96: $ — $(24,796,47) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $74,992,50
Issuance of common stock fq
exercise of option 128,66¢ 1,287 736,89( 738,17
Tax benefit of stock option
exercises 670,95! 670,95!
Net income and comprehensi
income for the year ended
June 30, 200 (36,86¢) 8,871,67! 8,834,81
Dividends (2,338,13) (2,338,13)
Balance at June 30, 20 21,012,58 $210,12¢ $102,019,89 $ 28,097 $ — $(18,262,92) 229,22 $(1,096,87) $82,898,31
Issuance of common stock f
Acquisition of royalty
interest in mineral
property 3,00( 30 55,14( 55,17(
Exercise of option 200,99: 2,01 971,00: 973,01:
Tax benefit of stock option
exercises 387,94 387,94.
Issuance of restricted sto 42,00( 42C 729,54 (729,96() —
Recognition of compensation
expense for restricted stock
issuance 205,30: 205,30:
Net income and comprehensi
income for the year ended
June 30, 200 (313,01) 11,453,71 11,140,69
Dividends (3,923,14) (3,923,14)
Balance at June 30, 20 21,258,57 $212,58! $104,163,51 $(284,92() $(524,659) $(10,732,35) 229,22 $(1,096,87) $91,737,29

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30,

Cash flows from operating activitir
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:

Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Gain on available for sale securit
Deferred tax expens
Impairment of mining asse
Non-cash employee stock compensation exp
Tax benefit of stock option exercis
Gain on sale of other ass:
Put option mark to marki
Other
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Royalty receivable
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Federal income taxes payal

Accrued liabilities and other current liabiliti

Other long term liabilitie:
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures for property and equipn
Acquisition of royalty interests in mineral propest
Purchase of available for sale securi
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secul
Proceeds from sale of other as:
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paic
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Net increase in cash and equivale
Cash and equivalents at beginning of
Cash and equivalents at end of y

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest
Income taxe:
Non-cash financing activities
Deferred compensation (equity offs
Declared dividend

Acquisition of royalty interest in mineral prope

2005 2004 2003
$11,453,71  $ 8,871,67°  $ 6,752,34
3,204,98. 3,313,95. 2,854,83!
(163,57) (22,779 —
1,054,91 2,772,11! 1,708,05:
— — 165,65:
205,30 — —
387,94 670,95 —
— — (158,39¢)
— — 213,99(
— 26,62: 6,35¢
(1,380,02) (2,095,871 95,39(
(65,88¢) (112,95%) (8,52%)
(141,50%) (95,13%) 297,09(
253,49 — —
17,38¢ 82,86: (235,66¢)
(6,45%) (10,400) (7,036)
$14,820,29  $13,401,04  $11,684,08
$ (126,95) $ (271,020 (24,067
(7,514,94) — (2,296,17))

(1,000,00()

539,96( 38,64: —
— — 277,28
$(8,101,94) $ (232,379  $(2,042,96)
$(3,651,89)  $(2,591,48)  $(2,377,71)
973,01 738,17 15,117,99
$(2,678,88)  $(1,853,31)  $12,740,27
4,039,47 11,315,35 22,381,40
44,800,90 33,485,54 11,104,14
$48,840,37  $44,800,90  $33,48554
$ 2,330,000 $ 453000 $ —
$ 72996( @ $ — 3 —
$3,923,14  $233813  $ 2,056,421
$ 5517 $ — % _

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Operations

Royal Gold, Inc. was incorporated under the lawthefState of Delaware on January 5, 1981, andgaged in the acquisition and
management of precious metals royalty interestga®prevenue is currently generated from miningragions in the United States and
Argentina. We seek to acquire existing royaltietodinance projects that are in production or rgraduction in exchange for royalty
interests. We also explore and develop propettiesght to contain precious metals and seek to mibtgialty and other carried ownership
interests in these properties through the subséduearsfer of interests to other mining companis. expect that substantially all of our
revenues are and will be derived from royalty iests. We do not conduct mining operations at tiiis.tDuring the 2005 fiscal year, we
focused on the creation of royalty interests thiofigancing, exploration and also the acquisitibnoyalty interests.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of our financial statements in oomity with accounting principles generally accebite the United States of America
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and ligslitnd disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statenseand the reported amounts of revenues and expdosag the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estites.

Basis of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Royal Gold, Inc. and its wholly-ownedbsidiaries. Intercompany transactions
and account balances have been eliminated in ddatioh.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

We consider all highly liquid investments purchaséith an original maturity of three months or lésde cash equivalents. At June 30, 2005,
cash and cash equivalents were primarily held inaumed interest bearing cash and money markeuatso

Available for Sale Securities:

Investments in securities that have readily deteatvle fair values are classified as available-&de-investments. Unrealized gains and losses
on these investments are recorded in accumulates obmprehensive income as a separate componstutotholders’ equity, except that
declines in market value judged to be other thexpteary are recognized in determining net incombelinvestments are sold, the realized
gains and losses on these investments, determgileg the specific identification method, are in@ddn determining net income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s policy for determining whether deetinn fair value of available-for-sale investmeants other than temporary includes a
quarterly analysis of the investments and a redaggwnanagement of all investments that are impalfesich impairment is determined by
Company to be other than temporary, the investra@ust basis is written down to fair value and réed in net income during the period the
Company determines such impairment to be othertéraporary.

Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties:

Royalty interests in mineral properties includeuiced royalty interests in production stage, depmient stage and exploration stage
properties. The fair value of acquired royalty ietts in mineral properties are capitalized asitd@@ssets when such interests do not meet
the definition of a financial asset under FASB &tagnt No. 140 or a derivative instrument under F/A3&ement No. 133. As of June 30,
2005, all of our royalty interests are classifisdangible assets.

Acquisition costs of production and developmengsteoyalty interests are depleted using the utigaduction method over the life of the
mineral property, which is estimated using proved probable reserves. Acquisition costs of royaitgrests on exploration stage mineral
properties, where there are no proven and prolvabkrves, are not amortized. At such time as thecéted exploration stage mineral
interests are converted to proven and probablewesgethe cost basis is amortized over the min@gerties remaining life, using proven and
probable reserves. The carrying values of explomagtage mineral interests are evaluated for impait at such time as information becomes
available indicating that the production will natoair in the future. Exploration costs are chargedperations when incurred.

Asset Impairment:

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatghbatlated carrying amounts of an
asset or group of assets may not be recoveraberedoverability of the carrying value of royalhterests in production and development
stage mineral properties is evaluated based ugonatsd future undiscounted net cash flows fromheayalty interest property using
estimates of proven and probable reserves. We @&eailne recoverability of the carrying value ofally interests in exploration stage mineral
properties in the event of significant decreasdblémprice of gold, and whenever new informatiogareing the mineral properties is obtained
from the operator that could affect the future regability of our royalty interests. Impairmentstive carrying value of each property are
measured and recorded to the extent that the ngrmglue in each property exceeds its estimated/dduie, which is generally calculated
using estimated future discounted cash flows.

Our estimate of gold prices, operator’s estimafggaven and probable reserves related to our tpypabperties, and operator’s estimates of
operating, capital and reclamation costs are stubgemertain risks and uncertainties which mayaftee recoverability of our investment in
these royalty interests in mineral properties. iltgh we have made our best assessment of thesesfhased on current conditions, it is
possible that changes could occur, which could e affect the net cash flows expected to be igeéae from these royalty interests. The
company believes that no impairment of its longdivassets occurred during the 2005 fiscal yeaxistesl at June 30, 2005.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Office Furniture, Equipment and Improvements:

We record the acquisition cost of office furnitaned equipment and leasehold improvements, lessradated depreciation and amortization,
as a component of other assets in our consolidatkehce sheets. We depreciate our office furnamaequipment over estimated useful li
ranging from two to seven years using the straligletiethod. Leasehold improvements are amortized the term of the lease using the
straight-line method. The cost of normal mainteresared repairs is expensed as incurred. Signifiegpénditures, which increase the life of
the asset, are capitalized and depreciated ovesstimaated remaining useful life of the asset. Umdinement or disposition of office
furniture, equipment, or improvements, related gainlosses are recorded in operations.

Revenue:

Royalty revenue is recognized in accordance wightéhms of the underlying royalty agreements sultfe(i) the pervasive evidence of the
existence of the arrangements; (ii) the risks awdards having been transferred; (iii) the royakynig fixed or determinable; and (iv) the
collectibility of the royalty being reasonably asstl For royalty payments received in gold, royadtyenue is recorded at the average spot
price of gold for the period in which the royaltyasvearned.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under Stateofi€inancial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) N@91Accounting for Income

Taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of terapodifferences between the reported amountssgtasand liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts measured gvtaxand regulations. The deferred tax assetdianitities represent the future tax
return consequences of those differences, whidreitfiler be taxable or deductible when the assatdiabilities are recovered or settled. A
valuation allowance is provided for deferred tageds when management concludes it is more likely tiot that some portion of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized.

Stock Options:

We measure compensation cost as prescribed by Amad No. 25 (“APB 25") Accounting for Stock Issued to Employebi®
compensation cost related to the granting of stgtlons has been recognized in the financial stateésnas the exercise price of all option
grants was equal to the market price of our ComBtock at the date of grant. In October 1995, tiiauf¢ial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accountingu®lards (“SFAS”) No. 123ccounting for Stock Based Compensati&fAS 123
defines a fair value based method of accountingif@ployee options or similar equity instrumentsdidampensation cost been determined
under the provisions of SFAS 123, the following fsoma net income and per share amounts would bega recorded:

48




Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Years Ended June :

2005 2004 2003
Net income, as reporte $11,453,71 $8,871,67! $6,752,34
Add: Stockbased compensation expense for restricted stockdavrecluded in reporte
net income, net of related tax effe 131,39¢ — —
Less: Total stoclbased employee compensation expense determined thedair value
based method for all awards, net of related teeces (653,22)) (851,979 (780,639
Pro forma net incom $10,931,88 $8,019,70: $5,971,70
Earnings per shar
Basic, as reporte $ 0.5 $ 0.4 $ 0.34
Basic, pro forms $ 0.52 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3C
Diluted, as reporte $ 0.54 $ 0.4z $ 0.3:
Diluted, pro forme $ 0.52 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3C
The pro forma amounts were determined using thekB&choles model with the following assumptions:
2005 2004 2003
Weighted average expected volatil 69.771% 74.1% 56.7%
Weighted average expected option term in y 4.5 4.8 5.5
Weighted average risk free interest t 3.6% 3.5% 3.2%
Weighted average grant fair val $ 9.2t $12.17 $10.0¢

Operating Segments:

We manage our business under one operating segeoasisting of royalty acquisition and managemetit/gies. All of our assets and
revenues are attributable to the royalty operategment.

Comprehensive Income:

In addition to net income, comprehensive incoméuithes changes in equity during a period associatttdcumulative unrealized changes in
the fair value of marketable securities held fde saet of tax effects.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividiegt income or loss by the weighted average nuofi@mmon shares outstanding dur
each year. Diluted earnings per share reflectetfeet of all potentially dilutive stock options.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Reclassifications:

Certain accounts in the prior period financial esta¢nts have been reclassified for comparative gegpto conform with the presentation in
the current period financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting &eds Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement No. (f28ised 2004)Share-Based
Paymen(“Statement 123(R)"), which is a revision of FASEa&@ment No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based Compensafi@FAS 123").
Statement 123(R) supersedes Accounting PrinciptesdNo. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employgad’B 25”), and amends FASB
Statement No. 9%tatement of Cash FlowStatement 123(R) requires all share-based pagnemmployees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the financialeshents based on their fair values. StatemenR)48ffective for us beginning with our
first fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2005.aMecurrently evaluating the effect of Statemer®(R2 on our consolidated financial
statements and results of operations, includingrehesition method we expect to utilize and anyeptial changes to our compensation
strategy resulting from the adoption of the revisethdard. Based upon our evaluation of the effeatvested stock options currently
outstanding, and the potential effect of futurershmsed grants that may be issued under the Omhiing-Term Incentive Plan, the
Company expects that the adoption of SFAS 123(R)have a material effect on the Company’s finahp@sition and results of operations.

In June 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. ABdounting Changes and Error Corrections — A reptaent of APB No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. @SFAS 154"). SFAS 154 provides guidance on theoaating for and reporting of accounting changesemadr corrections.

It establishes, unless impracticable, retrospecatpgication as the required method for reportimipange in accounting principle in the
absence of explicit transition requirements spectdithe newly adopted accounting principle. SFA8 also provides guidance for
determining whether retrospective application ohange in accounting principle is impracticable &ordeporting a change when
retrospective application is impracticable. Therection of an error in previously issued finana&tements is not an accounting change.
However, the reporting of an error correction im&d adjustments to previously issued financiakbstants similar to those generally
applicable to reporting an accounting change rp&rcisvely. Therefore, the reporting of a correctidran error by restating previously issued
financial statements is also addressed by SFASIBAS 154 is required to be adopted in fiscal ybagnning after December 15, 2005.
The Company does not believe its adoption will hawveaterial impact on its financial statements.

2. INVESTMENT IN REVETT SILVER COMPANY AND THE TROY MINE

On October 14, 2004, in a three-part transactlom Gompany paid $8.5 million to Revett Silver Compé'Revett”) and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Genesis Inc. (“Genesis”), in excharayawo royalty interests in the Troy undergrounsesi and copper mine, located in
northwestern Montana, and shares in Revett.

For consideration of $7.25 million, the Companyadtéd the right to receive a production paymentwdent to a 7.0% gross smelter return
royalty (“GSR royalty”) from all metals and prodagiroduced and sold from the Troy mine. As repote&evett at the time of the
transaction, total contained proven
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and probable reserves at the Troy mine were 13l®mounces of silver and 113 million pounds opper. The GSR royalty will extend ur
either cumulative production of approximately 9.8lion ounces of silver and 84.6 million poundsamipper, or the Company receives
$10.5 million in cumulative payments, whicheverascfirst. As of June 30, 2005, we have receivedrnts associated with the GSR
royalty totaling $749,362.

As a second component of the transaction, the Coynaequired a perpetual GSR royalty (“Perpetuahltyy) at the Troy mine for $250,00
The rate for this Perpetual royalty begins at 6dt¥any production in excess of 11.0 million ounagsilver and 94.1 million pounds of
copper, and steps down to a perpetual 2% royaty efimulative production has exceeded 12.7 millionces of silver and 108.2 million
pounds of copper. In the third component of thagaation, the Company purchased approximately ill@mshares of Revett common stc
for $1.0 million. These shares can be convertedeunertain circumstances and at the electionefbmpany, into a 1% net smelter return
(“NSR”) royalty on the Rock Creek mine, also lochbe northwestern Montana and owned by Revett.

Under the terms of the share agreement, the Compasthe right, but not the obligation, to cure dafault by Revett or Genesis under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage paadg#cured by a Promissory Note, to Kennecott Men@ompany (“Kennecott”), a third
party and prior Joint Venture interest owner of They mine. The principal and accrued interest urtide Promissory Note as of June 30,
2005, was approximately $6.7 million with a matydate of February 2008.

We have recorded the acquisition of the GSR royatty the Perpetual royalty interests as compordiReyalty Interests in Mineral
Properties on the consolidated balance sheetsaddugsition of the 1.3 million shares of Revettasorded as an investment in available for
sale securities on the Consolidated Balance SHeetsg February 2005, Revett completed an injiigblic offering through a newly created
parent company, Revett Minerals Inc., a publichded Canadian company. Accordingly, its sharesimmwe a readily determinable market
value. Unrealized gains and loses on these invedsnaee recorded in accumulated other compreheirsioene (net of tax) as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity, which are reépgghin determining net income when investmentssaté. We recorded an unrealized
loss of $284,920 (net of tax) in this investmemttfee fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. Accordimguiopolicy for evaluation of available for
sale securities for impairment, management hasrdated that our investment in Revett is not impaio& an other than temporary basis at
this time. During our fourth fiscal quarter, Revetperienced a permitting issue with respect tdRbek Creek project, which caused the
market price of its shares to decline. Based onipstatements from Revett, it is expected thatilhéed States Fish and Wildlife Service
will re-issue a Biological Opinion related to thedk Creek project permitting issue during the kef of calendar 2005. We will re-evaluate
the carrying value of our investment each reporiagod as new information becomes available.

3. AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

Investments in securities that have readily deteainie market values are classified as availablsdt investments. Unrealized gains and
losses on these investments are recorded in acateduther comprehensive income (net of tax) &parate component of stockholders’
equity. When investments are sold, the realizedsgand losses on the sale of these investmendgtasnined using the specific identificat
method, and any unrealized gain/loss recordeddaraalated other comprehensive income are includegiermining net income. We
recorded a gain on sale of available for sale #gesiof $163,577, $22,778 and $0 during the fisegrs ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and -
respectively.
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4. ROYALTY INTERESTS IN MINERAL PROPERTIES

As of June 30, 2005:

Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple;
GSR1
GSR2
GSR3
NVR1
Bald Mountain
SJ Claims
Troy mine GSR royalt
Leeville South (formerly Carlin Eas
Martha

Development stage royalty interes
Leeville North

Exploration stage royalty interes
Leeville North
Troy mine Perpetual royali
Buckhorn Soutt

Total royalty interests in mineral propert

52

Accumulatec

Depletion &

Gross Amortization Net
$ — $ — $ —
8,105,02! (5,586,43)) 2,518,58:
2,135,10 (1,475,26) 659,84
1,978,54 (1,785,94) 192,60:
20,788,44. (2,936,63) 17,851,81
7,250,00! (388,599 6,861,401
1,775,80! (1,638,00) 137,80:
172,81( (172,810 —
42,205,73 (13,983,68) 28,222,04
14,240,41 — 14,240,41
2,305,84! (271,18) 2,034,65:
250,00( — 250,00(
70,11, — 70,11°
2,625,96: (271,18 2,354,77!
$59,072,11 $(14,254,87) $44,817,24
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As of June 30, 2004:

Accumulatec

Depletion &
Gross Amortization Net
Production stage royalty interes

Pipeline Mining Comple;

GSR1 $ = $ = $ =

GSR2 — — —

GSR3 8,105,02 (4,871,96) 3,233,05

NVR1 2,135,10 (1,256,26) 878,84(
Bald Mountain 1,978,54 (1,764,57, 213,97:
SJ Claims 20,788,44 (1,736,07) 19,052,37
Leeville South (formerly Carlin Eas 1,775,80! (1,118,32) 657,48:
Martha 172,81( (158,000 14,81(

34,955,73 (10,905,20)  24,050,53

Development stage royalty interes

Leeville North 14,240,41 — 14,240,41
Exploration stage royalty interes

Leeville North 2,305,84! (271,18) 2,034,65i
Total royalty interests in mineral propert $51,502,00 $(11,176,38)  $40,325,61

Effective April 2004, and in accordance with FASB\&ging Issues Task Force Issue No., or EITF, Q4A&king Group Report No.1,
Whether Mineral Rights are Tangible or Intangiblesats and Related Issue& evaluated and determined that our royalty istsrare
tangible assets. We based our conclusion on sefaetars including:

1. Our royalty interests in mineral properties aresidared real property interes
2. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do matet the definition of financial assets under FARBtement No. 140; ar
3. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do matet the definition of derivative instruments unBASB Statement No. 13

Accordingly, during the fourth quarter of fiscal®) we reclassified all of our royalty interestsrimeral properties as tangible assets in our
consolidated balance sheets and ceased amortigihgration stage mineral interests prior to the oe@ncement of production on a
prospective basis. This resulted in a decreasepediation, depletion and amortization of appratiely $68,000 during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004.
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Presented below is a discussion of the statusabf ebour royalty interests in mineral properties.

Pipeline Mining Complex

We own two sliding-scale gross smelter return rigal(GSR1 ranging from 0.40% to 5.0% and GSR2iranfjom 0.72% to 9.0%), a 0.71%
fixed gross royalty (GSR3), and a 0.39% net vatyaity (NVR1) over the Pipeline Mining Complex thatludes the Pipeline and South
Pipeline gold deposits in Lander County, Nevada.

The Pipeline Mining Complex is owned by the Codeint Venture, a joint venture between Placer Qdrie. (60%), a subsidiary of Placer
Dome Inc., and Kennecott Explorations (Australi&d.l(40%), a subsidiary of Rio Tinto.

Bald Mountain

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale net smelterng or NSR, royalty that burdens a portion of Bad Mountain mine, in White Pine
County, Nevada. Bald Mountain is an open pit, Heaph mine operated by Placer Dome U.S. Inc. Tidinglscale royalty increases or
decreases with the gold price, adjusted by the P386ucer Price Index. Our royalty rate would imseto 2% around a gold price of $500
per ounce.

SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR on the SJ Claims that coverstiopmf the Betze-Post mine, in Eureka County, &tas Betze-Post is an open pit mine
operated by Barrick Gold Corporation (“Barrick”)its Goldstrike property.

Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Project, in Eureka County,
Nevada. Leeville North is an underground operatiomrently under development by Newmont Mining Gogiion “Newmont”). Newmont
has announced its intention to initiate productiheeville North during the fourth quarter of aadar 2005. Current production on the
Leeville Project ground is derived from undergroymdduction from Leeville South (formerly the Carkast deposit), also operated by
Newmont.

We carry our interest in the proven and probaldemees at Leeville North as a development stagaltsointerest, which will be depleted
using the units of production method estimatedgigpioven and probable reserves. Amortization ofdmuelopment stage interest will begin
upon commencement of production at Leeville Nofththat time, the development stage cost basiseefille North will be reclassified as a
production stage royalty interest.

We carry our interest in the non-reserve portiohexdville North as an exploration stage royaltgiast, which is not subject to periodic
amortization. In the event that future proven arabpble reserves are developed at Leeville Nodbaated with our interest, the cost basis
of our exploration stage royalty interest will lzelassified as a development stage royalty intemeatproduction stage royalty interest in
future periods as appropriate. In the event thatréuevents or circumstances indicate that thereearve
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portion of Leeville North will not be converted inproven and probable reserves, we will evaluatecarrying value in the exploration stage
interest for impairment.

Martha Mine
We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mine locatefirgentina, operated by Coeur d’Alene Mining Cangtion.

Troy Mine

As discussed in Note 2, we own a production payreqotvalent to a 7.0% GSR royalty from all metaid products produced and sold from
the Troy mine located in northeastern Montana. GB& royalty will extend until either cumulative prection of approximately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppethe Company receives $10.5 million in cumulkatdayments, whichever occurs first. As
of June 30, 2005, we have received payments assdaiath the GSR royalty totaling $749,362. We gaur interest in the proven and
probable reserves for the GSR royalty as a prooinciage royalty interest, which is depleted udlirgunits of production method estimated
by using proven and probable reserves. Mining djgera commenced at the Troy mine during Decemb84 2@ith the first shipment of
concentrate occurring during January 2005. Amditimeof our production stage interest commencedti wie first concentrate shipment from
the Troy mine during the third quarter of our fisgear 2005.

We also own a perpetual GSR royalty (“Perpetuadityy) at the Troy mine. The royalty rate for therPetual royalty begins at 6.1% on any
production in excess of 11.0 million ounces ofeiland 94.1 million pounds of copper, and stepsrdimaa perpetual 2% after cumulative
production has exceeded 12.7 million ounces o&siind 108.2 million pounds of copper. We carryiaterest in the non-reserve portion of
the Perpetual royalty as an exploration stage tpyahich is not subject to periodic amortizatibmthe event that future proven and probable
reserves are developed, that are associated witRerpetual royalty interest, the cost basis ofeoynloration stage royalty interest will be
reclassified as a development stage royalty interea production stage royalty interest in futpegiods, as appropriate. In the event that
future events or circumstances indicate that theneserve portion of the Perpetual royalty will hetconverted into proven and probable
reserves, we will evaluate our carrying value | éxploration stage interest for impairment.

Buckhorn South

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, vgeesed to purchase an additional 2.5% net profter@st royalty interest on the Buckhorn
South property, located in Eureka County, Nevaola3f000 shares of our common stock, valued atoqopiately $70,000, including
acquisition costs. The purchase of the additiomarest resulted in the Company holding a 16.5%pratts interest royalty on the Buckhorn
South property. Buckhorn South is a property ofrapimately 5,000 acres, subject to 265 unpatentedihon claims, located approximately 2
miles south of the Buckhorn mine. We have accoufgethe acquisition of the additional Buckhorn 8Svointerest as an asset purchase, and
have allocated the purchase price, including dizequisition costs, to the acquired asset. Theieajinterest will be classified as an
exploration stage royalty interest for accountiniggoses.
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Mule Canyon

We own a 5% NSR royalty on a portion of the Mulen@an mine, owned by Newmont. Based upon updatedugteon information obtained
from the operator during the fourth quarter of dilsgear 2003, we recorded an impairment chargel 65%54, to writesff the remaining boo
value of our investment in Mule Canyon. We contitmiewn this royalty, but do not expect to recaieeenues from production at Mule
Canyon in the foreseeable future.

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) COMPUTATION

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Pe-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $11,453,71 20,875,95 $0.5¢
Effect of potentially dilutive option 194,84( .
Diluted EPS $11,453,71 21,070,79 $0.54

Options to purchase 392,580 shares of common saben average purchase price of $19.40 per share,outstanding at June 30, 2005, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HRSause the exercise price of these options veadagrthan the average market price of
the common shares for the year.

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Pe-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $8,871,67! 20,760,45 $0.4:
Effect of potentially dilutive option 350,06¢ .
Diluted EPS $8,871,67! 21,110,52 $0.42

Options to purchase 266,940 shares of common saben average purchase price of $20.10 per shvare,outstanding at June 30, 2004, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HRS8ause the exercise price of these options veadagrthan the average market price of
the common shares for the year.
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Pe-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $6,752,34 19,795,94 $0.3¢
Effect of potentially dilutive option 435,68 .
Diluted EPS $6,752,34 20,231,63 $0.3¢

Options to purchase 164,980 shares of common saben average purchase price of $20.06 per shvare,outstanding at June 30, 2003, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HieBause the exercise price of these options veadegrthan the average market price of
the common shares for the year.

6. INCOME TAXES

The tax effects of temporary differences and camy#rds, which give rise to our deferred tax asantsliabilities at June 30, 2005 and 2004,
are as follows:

2005 2004
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ — $1,671,30
AMT credit carryforward: 120,74! 403,52¢
Capital loss carrybact 277,21! —
Other 215,18 223,48:
Total deferred tax asse 613,14 2,298,31i
Valuation allowanct — (320,449
Net deferred tax asse 613,14 1,977,87
Deferred tax liabilities
Mineral property basi (7,574,680 (8,078,97)
Other (18,417) —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (7,593,09) (8,078,97)
Total net deferred taxe $(6,979,94) $(6,101,10)

At June 30, 2004, we had approximately $4,300,d0Gboperating loss carryforwards which were fultilized during our fiscal year 2005.
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2005 2004 2003
Current federal tax expen $3,047,55. $ 882,24: $ 176,67
Deferred tax expens 1,375,35 2,890,69! 2,233,28!
Decrease in deferred tax asset valuation allow (320,44 (118,58() (525,23)
$4,102,46. $3,654,35! $1,884,73.

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal yeamsled June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, differs fremaimount of income tax determined by
applying the applicable U.S. statutory federal meatax rate to pre-tax income from operations igsalt of the following differences:

2005 2004 2003
Total expense computed by applying statutory $5,444,66. $4,384,11. $3,022,97
State income taxes, net of federal ber 156,60( 130,74: —
Adjustments of valuation allowan: (320,44¢) (118,58() (525,23)
Excess depletio (952,529 (836,53) (545,32)
Other (225,82Y 94,61¢ (67,697

$4,102,46. $3,654,35 $1,884,73.

As of June 30, 2005, there was no valuation allmsaecorded with respect to our deferred tax aséstef June 30, 2004, our remaining
valuation allowance was associated with the bookusetax basis difference attributed to our avélétr sale securities. During fiscal year
2005, the related available for sale securitiesvgetd, resulting in the realization of the taxeasssociated with those securities. As such, the
valuation allowance of $320,446 was fully reverdadng fiscal 2005.

As of June 30, 2003, we evaluated our deferre@sart valuation allowance by forecasting the futtifzation of our net operating loss
carryforwards, which totaled approximately $15 miil Using an estimated long-term gold price ofGg@r ounce at June 30, 2003, we
projected that we would fully utilize our existingt operating loss carryforwards. As a result, eednined that it was appropriate to remove
the remaining $525,232 valuation allowance assediaftith our net operating loss carryforwards adusfe 30, 2003. The acquisition of High
Desert during fiscal year 2003 contributed to dility to utilize our remaining net operating losarryforwards and, therefore, to release our
valuation allowance during fiscal year 2003. Theraging loss carryforwards have been fully utilizesdof June 30, 2005.

7. COMMITMENTS
RG Russia

On June 20, 2003, through a newly formed wholly-ed/subsidiary, RG Russia, Inc., we entered intagraement for exploration in Russia
with a subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Cogtion, who holds an exploration license grantedhgyRussian government. If
exploration is successful, and a license to mimebeasecured, we will have a 1% NSR royalty. Weeweguired to provide exploration
funding totaling $1.3 million over a period notérceed 24 months from the date of the agreemergdin this royalty interest.
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As of June 30, 2005, we fully funded our $1.3 raillicommitment. We have expensed the initial fundimgpunt as a component of
Exploration and Business Development in the accaoryipg financial statements.
Operating Lease

We lease office space under a lease agreementh wkjgires December 31, 2009. Future minimum castarpayments are $115,713,
$119,067, $122,421, $125,775 and $63,726 for figeats ending June 30, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 @hd, 2espectively. Rent expense
charged to operations for the years ended Jun208®, 2004 and 2003, amounted to $111,089, $12260%116,786, respectively.

Employment Agreements

We have one-year employment agreements with soroaradfficers which, under certain circumstanceguire total minimum future
compensation, at June 30, 2005, of $870,000. Thestef each of these agreements automatically dxsemually, for one additional year,
unless terminated by Royal Gold or the officer,anding to the terms of the agreements.

Line of Credit Commitment Fees

We have a $10 million line of credit from HSBC BadkA that may be used to acquire producing royalfRepayment of any loan under the
line of credit will be secured by a mortgage on G8®R3 royalty at the Pipeline Mining Complex, adabsecurity interest in the proceeds
from any of our royalties at the Pipeline Miningr@jmlex. Any assets purchased with the line of creditalso serve as collateral. As of

June 30, 2005, no funds have been drawn undeinief credit. During fiscal years 2005, 2004 af02, we paid commitment fees of
$76,042, $76,510 and $76,282, respectively, to HBBAK USA.

8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND STOCK OPTION COMPENSATI ON

Preferred Stock
We have 10,000,000 authorized and unissued shbfe8lopar value Preferred Stock.

Treasury Stock

We have adopted a stock repurchase program, irrvth&Board of Directors authorized the repurctudag to $5 million of our common
stock, from time-to-time, in the open market opiivately negotiated transactions. In accordandh this program, we have repurchased
229,224 shares of common stock. Repurchased stwaréeld in the treasury for general corporate gaep. We have no commitments to
purchase our common stock.
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Stockholders’ Rights Plan

Our board of directors adopted a Stockholders’ Rigtlan in which preferred stock purchase righRghts”) were distributed as a dividend
at the rate of one Right for each share of comntocksheld as of close of the business on Septeihet997. The terms of the Stockholders
Rights plan provide that if any person or groupev@rannounce an intention to acquire or were tpiae 15 percent or more of our
outstanding common stock, then the owners of ehalesof common stock (other than the acquiringgeos group) would become entitled
to exercise a right to buy one one-hundredth afwalyissued share of Series A Junior ParticipaBneferred Stock of Royal Gold, at an
exercise price of $50 per Right.

2004 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

In November 2004, the Company adopted the Omnilougj4Term Incentive Plan (“2004 Plan”). The 2004rRieplaces the Company’s
Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2004 Plan, 900,8i8dres of Common Stock are available for futuamtgrto officers, directors, key
employees and other persons. The Plan providdhdagrant of stock options, unrestricted stockirieted stock, dividend equivalent rights,
stock appreciation rights, and cash awards. Arthede awards may, but need not, be made as perfoenracentives. Stock options granted
under the 2004 Plan may be non-qualified stockoogtor incentive stock options.

Royal Gold granted various awards under the 2084 Bliring the second quarter of fiscal year 208%5ledailed below.

Stockbased Compensation

During November 2004, performance awards were gdart certain employees and officers consisting8p250 shares of common stock
(“Performance Shares”). The Performance Sharebeaarned only if defined multi-year performancalg@re met within a period of five
years from the date of grant. If the performancalgare not earned by the end of this five yeaiodethe Performance Shares will
forfeited. Vesting of Performance Shares is sulifgcertain performance measures being met anbedased on an interim earn out of 2
50%, 75% or 100%. The defined performance goalsi@ddo three performance measures, including tr@f/free cash flow per share on a
trailing twelve month basis, growth of royalty oesdn reserve on a annual basis, and growth inehadpitalization during the five year
vesting period.

There was no compensation expense recorded fdisttat year ended June 30, 2005, with respectad#rformance Shares. The
measurement date for the Performance Shares wiletsgmined at such time that the performance goalattained or that it is probable they
will be attained. In accordance with APB 25, atlstime that compensation expense for the Perform&hares can be estimated,
compensation expense will be measured by the nuoflsrares that will ultimately be earned at trentieurrent market price of our common
stock. Interim recognition of compensation expemgibe made at such time as management can reblyoestimate the number of shares
that will be earned. As of June 30, 2005, our estir® indicate that there was not a reasonableqpiajeof the number of Performance Shares
to be earned, if any.

Also during November 2004, certain employees, efficand the Board of Directors (“BOD”) were graht,000 shares of restricted
common stock (“Restricted Stock”). Restricted Steekts by continued service alone. For certain eyggs and officers, the vesting period
for Restricted Stock begins after a three-yearihglgeriod from the date of grant with one-thirctloé shares vesting in years
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four, five and six, respectively. Shares of RetdcStock represent issued and outstanding shaoesmnon stock, with dividend and voting
rights, subject to forfeiture upon termination affgoyment with the Company.

In accordance with APB 25, for the fiscal year ehdene 30, 2005, we recorded non-cash stock comfiengxpense associated with the
restricted stock of $205,301, representing amditineof the fair value of the Restricted Stock floe period. The measurement date to begin
amortization for the Restricted Stock was the gdmté of November 10, 2004. The fair value of tlestRcted Stock at the measurement date
was $17.38 per share. Amortization is based oreaght line basis over the expected six year vggtgriod, except for non-executive BOD
restricted shares which are vested 50% immediataly50% after one year from the date of grant.

Stock Options

During August 2004, 10,000 stock options were grdnd an employee under the Company’s Equity Ieeftlan, at an exercise price of
$14.97 per share, which was the closing markeegddc our common stock on the date of grant. Tluggi®ns vest over a one-year period.

During November 2004, 136,000 stock options weasntgd to certain employees, officers, and the B@feuthe 2004 Plan. These options
have an exercise price of $17.38, which was theirdpmarket price for our Common Stock on the déigrant. The options have vesting
terms ranging from one to three years, except fobBptions of which 50% vests immediately and 5024t after one year from the date of
grant.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, optioqmirchase 200,993 shares were exercised, rasuitproceeds of $973,012. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, options to puecthd8,669 shares were exercised, resulting in poscef $738,177.

The following schedules detail activity relatedotions for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2002608:

Optioned Weighted Averag:
Shares Exercise Price
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 840,05: $ 5.9C
Grantec 164,98( $20.0¢
Exercisec (188,85)) $ 5.41
Options outstanding at June 30, 2( 816,18: $ 8.87
Granted 104,00( $20.01
Exercisec (128,669 $ 5.71
Reissuec (499 $ 4.5¢
Options outstanding at June 30, 2( 791,01 $10.8¢
Granted 146,00( $17.21
Exercisec (200,99) $ 4.8¢
Options outstanding at June 30, 2( 736,02 $13.7¢

All exercisable options outstanding at June 3052@0nsist of 343,444 options exercisable at a teitjaverage exercise price of $7.31. All
options outstanding at June 30, 2005, consist 6f023! options, at an average exercise price of/$1and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.9 years.
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9. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In each of fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, weived $21,600,739, $18,968,389 and $14,605,33peotisely, of our royalty revenues
from the same operator.

10. SIMPLIFIED EMPLOYEE PENSION (“SEP”) PLAN

We maintain a Simplified Employee Pension (“SEmBl& which all employees are eligible to partiaip. We contribute a minimum of 3%
of an employee’s compensation to an account sénthe benefit of the employee. If an employe® alsooses to contribute to the SEP Plan
through salary reduction contributions, we will ctasuch contributions to a maximum of 7% of the yge’s salary. We contributed
$126,390, $104,422 and $75,808, in fiscal year$20004 and 2003, respectively.

11. ACQUISITION OF HIGH DESERT MINERAL RESOURCES, | NC.

In December 2002, we completed the acquisitior9g841,293 of the common stock of High Desert MihB@sources, Inc. (“High Desert”),
from High Desert’s principal stockholder. Considima for the purchase was 1,412,229 newly issuadeshof Royal Gold common stock and
$200,000 in cash. As a result of the acquisitiooyd® Gold held a total of 49,411,793 shares of comstock of High Desert, representing
93.5% of the issued and outstanding shares.

After the closing of the binding agreement and cletiipn of delivery of all High Desert shares, Ro@adld owned sufficient High Desert
shares to allow it to proceed with a short-form geerunder Delaware law. Royal Gold proceeded teceti short-form merger under
Delaware law to merge High Desert into a wholly-edrsubsidiary of Royal Gold, for cash consideratib$1,951,530. As a result of the
completion of the short-form merger, Royal Gold evit®0% of the issued and outstanding shares of Blagert.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. CONTINGENCIES
Casmalia

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environmdntatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold and 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRs§er the Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@itess Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “Site9dnta Barbara County, California.
EPA's allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP wasdasethe disposal of allegedly hazardous petroleypioration wastes at the Site by
Royal Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Incingl1983 and 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 2B@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP griaugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States oAca intending to settle their liability for thentled States of America’ past and future
clean-up costs incurred at the Site. Based on thammal volume of allegedly hazardous waste that&®esources, Inc. disposed of at the
Site, our share of the $25.3 million settlement amavas $107,858, which we deposited into the @seawcount that the PRP group set up
that purpose in January 2002. The funds were patidet United States of America on May 9, 2003. Uhéed States of America may only
pursue Royal Gold and the other PRPs for additiolean-up costs if the United States of Americaltolean-up costs at the Site significantly
exceed the expected cost of approximately $272amilWe believe this to be a remote possibilitgréfore, we consider our potential
liability to the United States of America to beok®d.

The Partial Consent Decree does not resolve Rogll' $potential liability to the State of Califomn{“State”) for its response costs or for
natural resource damages arising from the Site.SEate has not expressed any interest in purs@ngal resource damages. However, on
October 1, 2002, the State notified Royal Gold toedrest of the PRP group that participated insétiement with the United States of
America that the State would be seeking responses ¢otaling approximately $12.5 million from theltnis not known what portion of these
costs the State expects to recover from this PRBpgin settlement. If the State agrees to a voltimaliocation, we will be liable for 0.438%
of any settlement amount. However, we expect thasbare of liability will be completely covered by$15 million, zero-deductible
insurance policy that the PRP group purchased fsgaty to protect itself from claims such as thabught by the State.
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13. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Earnings
Per Share ¢
Earnings Common
Per Share ¢ Stock
Royalty Operating Net Income Common Assuming
Revenue: Income (Loss) Stock Dilution
Fiscal Year 2005 Quarter Ende
September 3 $ 5,924,09. $ 3,333,14. $ 2,498,42 $0.12 $0.12
December 3: 6,031,83. 2,952,04. 2,618,31 0.1: 0.1
March 31 5,868,53! 3,440,58I 2,726,08! 0.1z 0.1z
June 3( 7,477,87! 4,936,27. 3,610,88: 0.17 0.17
$25,302,33 $14,662,04 $11,453,71 $0.5¢ $0.54
Fiscal Year 2004 Quarter Ende
September 3 $ 4,181,48! $ 1,823,32 $ 1,343,11. $0.0€ $0.0€
December 3: 5,083,46: 2,920,59! 2,277,46! 0.11 0.11
March 31 6,020,84. 3,854,91 2,950,81. 0.14 0.14
June 3( 6,067,28. 3,612,18I 2,300,28 0.17 0.11
$21,353,07 $12,211,01 $ 8,871,67 $0.4< $0.42

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT REGIS TERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, thenewo changes in or disagreements with our InadperRegistered Public Accounting
Firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, over accountimyfmancial disclosure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Prodeires

The SEC defines the term “disclosure controls andgrures” to mean a company’s controls and otrergglures that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in thgors that it files or submits under the Securigshange Act of 1934 is recorded, proces
summarized and reported, within the time periodgi@d in the SEC’s rules and forms. Our Chief &ixere Officer and our Chief
Accounting Officer, based on their evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures as of Jun2@5, concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective for thippee.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management’s report on internal control oveaficial reporting is set forth in Item 8 of thisrAral Report on Form 10-K and is
incorporated by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control oveairicial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)emtthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) during our fourth fiscal quarter tlaaehmaterially affected, or is reasonably likelyriaterially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proggegtent for its Annual Stockholders Meeting (urttierheading “Directors and Officejs
to be held on November 9, 2005, and to be filedh wie Securities and Exchange commission withinde3® after June 30, 2005.

The information called for by Item 10. “Compliane&h Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act,” is incaigged by reference to the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its Annual Stockholders Meefumder the heading “Compliance with Section 16fahe Securities Exchange Act of
1934") to be held on November 9, 2005, and to leel fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiohiwit20 days after June 30, 2005.

The Company has adopted a “Code of Business ComidcEthics” that applies to the Company’s princgaecutive officer, principal
accounting officer and all of its employees. Ther(pany’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics idaaion the Company’s website at
www.royalgold.com and in print to any stockholddronrequests a copy. Requests for copies shoulidtdetet to Royal Gold, Inc., Attention
Karen Gross, 1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000, De@@orado, 80202. The Company intends to discémgeamendments to the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics on the Company’s websit

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proagestent for its Annual Stockholders Meeting (unttierheading “Compensation of
Directors and Officers”) to be held on Novembe2@)5, and to be filed with the Securities and ErggaCommission within 120 days after
June 30, 2005.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Progye®tent for its Annual Stockholders Meeting (urttierheadings “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management”) to Hd ba November 9, 2005, and to be filed with theuBiies and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after June 30, 2005.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s PromgeBtent for its Annual Stockholders Meeting (urtierheading “Certain Relationships

and Related Transactions”) to be held on Novemb2095, and to be filed with the Securities andt&xge Commission within 120 days
after June 30, 2005.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Progyegtent for its Annual Stockholders Meeting (urttierheading “Ratification of

Appointment of Independent Certified Public Accamnts”) to be held on November 9, 2005, and to lled fivith the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after June 30, 2005.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(&) The following is a list of documents filed as pafthis report and are included herewith (*) or @deen filed previously
(1) Financial Statements included in Iterr
. Consolidated Balance She:
. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalemcome
. Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity
. Consolidated Statements of Cash F
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(2) Financial Statement schedules: All Schesiale omitted because the information called fooisapplicable, is not required, or
because the required information is set forth enfthancial statements or notes ther

(3) Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description
2 (a Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Dedédrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourées, Iltem 7, Exhibit

2.1, on Form -K filed December 20, 2002. (Incorporated hereindference.

3 (@ Certificate of Incorporation — Exhibit (b) to theo@pany’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decendi, 1980.
(Incorporated herein by referenc

(b) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation — Exhifm} to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31,
1980. (Incorporated herein by referenc

(c) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated May 987 - Exhibit (xiv) to the Company’s Form 10f¢t the year ended
June 30, 1987. (Incorporated herein by referet

(d) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated ey 2, 1988 — Exhibit 3(f) to the Company’s FotK for the year
ended June 30, 1990. (Incorporated herein by nedery

(e Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated ey 8, 1988. (Incorporated herein by referen
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Exhibit
Number Description
® Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated iRp2, 1996. (Incorporated herein by referen
(9) Certificate of Designations dated September 1771@8corporated herein by referenc
(h) By-Laws — Exhibit (d) to the Company’s Form 10-§r the fiscal year ended December 31, 1980. (Iraratpd herein by
reference.
4 (a) Shareholders’ Rights Agreement Exhibit B to the @any’s Form 8-A dated September 11, 1997. (Incateor herein by
reference.
10 (a)** Equity Incentive Pla— filed as part of Def 14A, filed November 25, 199@.corporated herein by referenc
(b) Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd., Silvet Baryte Ores Mining Co., S.A., and Royal Golda,. Jmated effective
March 30, 1998 — Exhibit 10(s) to the Company’srRdi0-K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incotedrherein by
reference.
(c) Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd. and R@d, Inc. dated effective March 28, 1998 — Exhiti)(t) to the
Compan’s Form 1K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incorporaszdih by reference
(d) Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwkacer Dome U.S., Inc. and Royal Gold, Inc. datéeictive July 1,
1998— Exhibit 10(v) to the Compar's Form 1-K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incorporatzdih by reference
(e) Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. and@betez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999, as fibsdpart of Item 5 of
Form &K filed April 12, 1999. (Incorporated herein by eeénce.’
0] Firm offer to purchase royalty interest of “ldahooGp” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group daddy 22, 1999, as
filed as part of Item 5 of Formr-K filed September 2, 1999. (Incorporated hereimddgrence.
(9)** Amendment to Equity Incentive Pli— filed as part of Def 14A, filed October 15, 1998cprporated herein by referenc
(h) Loan agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSB& RESA dated December 18, 2000, as filed as pdieof 6 of
Form 1(-Q filed February 8, 2002. (Incorporated herein dfgrence.
0] Share Exchange Agreement, dated November 9, 2§0shdbetween P. Lee Halavais and Royal Gold,+ndiled as
Exhibit 10.1 of Form -K filed December 23, 2002. (Incorporated hereindfgrence.
)] Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated Naatep#) 2002 - filed as Exhibit 10.1a on ForrK 8ted December 23

2002. (Incorporated herein by referenc
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Exhibit
Number Description
(k) Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Natesmber 29, 2002 — filed as Exhibit 10.1b on F@&4K filed
December 23, 2002. (Incorporated herein by referg
()] Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Dece#002 - filed as Exhibit 10.1b on Form 8-K filBécember 23,
2002. (Incorporated herein by referenc
(m) Production Payment Agreement between Genesis hacRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004, asl file part of ltem
1.01 of Form -K filed October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein éference.
(n) Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004, as filed as part af ted1 of Form 8-K
filed October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein berefice.’
(0) Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold dated October 13, 2004, as filed as part of Itebd df Form 8-K filed
October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein by refergr
(p)** Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, datedrkaty 18, 2005, filed under Item 9.01 on Form 8{Ed on February 25,
2005. (Incorporated herein by referenc
(a)** Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, daftethruary 18, 2005, filed under Item 9.01 of Forid 8led February 25
2005. (Incorporated herein by referenc
(N** Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, dated Febr@8r\y2005, filed under Iltem 9.01 of Form 8-K filedtfuary 25, 2005.
(Incorporated herein by referenc
s orm of Performance Share Agreement, dated Fe , filed under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K fi ruary 25, .
o F f Perf Share A dated Feba@&r2005, filed under | 9.01of F 8-K filedb 25, 2005
(Incorporated herein by referenc
(H)** Emponment_Agreement dated February 18, 2005, Uyoaa_mNeen Royal Gold, Inc. and Stefan Wenger, fileder Item 9.01
of Form &K filed February 25, 2005. (Incorporated hereirréference.
14 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, dated Map4 Ziled under Exhibit 14 to the Company’s ForfaK for the year
ended June 30, 2004. (Incorporated herein by nedery
21* Royal Gold and Its Subsidiarie
23* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
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Exhibit
Number Description

31* (a) Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Offiaequired by Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
31* (b) Certification of Treasurer and Chief Accounting ioéF required by Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

32* Written Statement of Chairman and Chief Executiyic@r, and Treasurer and Chief Accounting Offipeirsuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002. (18 U.S.C. 135(

* Filed herewith
**  |dentifies each management contract or compensplt&mor arrangemer
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the tegig has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Stanley Dempst¢
Stanley Dempse)
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Direci

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Stanley Dempst
Stanley Dempse)
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Direcl

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Stefan L. Weng:
Stefan L. Wengel
Treasurer and Chief Accounting Offici

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ John W. Got
John W. Goth
Director

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ S. Oden Howell, J
S. Oden Howell, Jr
Director

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Tony Jense
Tony Jenser
President, Chief Operating Officer, and Direc

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Merritt E. Marcus
Merritt E. Marcus
Director

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Edwin W. Peiker, J
Edwin W. Peiker, Jr.
Director

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ James W. Stucke
James W. Stuckel
Director

Date: August 29, 2005 By: /s/ Donald J. Wortl
Donald J. Worth
Director
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
Number Description
2 (@ Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Dedddrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourdes, Iltem 7, Exhibit
2.1, on Form -K filed December 20, 2002. (Incorporated hereindference.
3 (a Certificate of Incorporation — Exhibit (b) to theo@pany’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decendi, 1980.
(Incorporated herein by referenc
(b) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation — Exhif} to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31,
1980. (Incorporated herein by referenc
(c) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated May 987 - Exhibit (xiv) to the Company’s Form 10f¢t the year ended
June 30, 1987. (Incorporated herein by referer
(d) Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated ey 2, 1988 — Exhibit 3(f) to the Company’s FotfrK for the year
ended June 30, 1990. (Incorporated herein by neder}
(e Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated ey 8, 1988. (Incorporated herein by referen
® Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation dated iRp2, 1996. (Incorporated herein by referen
(9) Certificate of Designations dated September 1771@8corporated herein by referenc
(h) By-Laws — Exhibit (d) to the Company’s Form 10-ir the fiscal year ended December 31, 1980. (Iraratpd herein by
reference.
4 (a) Shareholders’ Rights Agreement Exhibit B to the @any’s Form 8-A dated September 11, 1997. (Incateor herein by
reference.

10 (a)** Equity Incentive Pla— filed as part of Def 14A, filed November 25, 199@.corporated herein by referenc

(b) Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd., Silvet Baryte Ores Mining Co., S.A., and Royal Gold,. Jdated effective
March 30, 1998 — Exhibit 10(s) to the Company’sradrO-K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incotpdraerein by
reference.

(c) Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd. and R@gdl, Inc. dated effective March 28, 1998 — Exhitfi(t) to the

Compan’s Form 1K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incorporagzdih by reference

(d) Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwkacer Dome U.S., Inc. and Royal Gold, Inc. datéeictive July 1,
1998— Exhibit 10(v) to the Compar's Form 1i-K for the year ended June 30, 1998. (Incorporagzdinh by reference

(e) Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April
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Exhibit
Number Description

1999, as filed as part of Item 5 of Fori-K filed April 12, 1999. (Incorporated herein by eeénce.

0] Firm offer to purchase royalty interest of “ldahooGp” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group daddy 22, 1999, as
filed as part of Item 5 of Formr-K filed September 2, 1999. (Incorporated hereimdigrence.

(9)** Amendment to Equity Incentive Pli— filed as part of Def 14A, filed October 15, 1998cprporated herein by referenc

(h) Loan agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSB&RESA dated December 18, 2000, as filed as pdieaf 6 of
Form 1(-Q filed February 8, 2002. (Incorporated herein dfgrence.

0] Share Exchange Agreement, dated November 9, 2§0hdbetween P. Lee Halavais and Royal Gold,+ndiled as
Exhibit 10.1 of Form -K filed December 23, 2002. (Incorporated hereinmdfgrence.

()] Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated NaseRa) 2002 - filed as Exhibit 10.1a on ForrK 8ited December 23
2002. (Incorporated herein by referenc

(k) Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Natesiber 29, 2002 — filed as Exhibit 10.1b on F@&4K filed
December 23, 2002. (Incorporated herein by referé

()] Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Decei002 - filed as Exhibit 10.1b on Form 8-K filBécember 23,
2002. (Incorporated herein by referenc

(m) Production Payment Agreement between Genesis hacRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004, asl file part of Item
1.01 of Form -K filed October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein bference.

(n) Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004, as filed as part of te01 of Form 8-K
filed October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein bereifice.

(0) Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold dated October 13, 2004, as filed as part of Itedd df Form 8-K filed
October 18, 2004. (Incorporated herein by refergt

(p)** Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, datedriaty 18, 2005, filed under Item 9.01 on Form 8H{Ed on February 25,
2005. (Incorporated herein by referenc

(a)** Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dafetbruary 18, 2005, filed under Item 9.01 of Forid 8led February 25,
2005. (Incorporated herein by referenc

(N** Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, dated Febr8ry2005, filed under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K filedfuary 25, 2005.
(Incorporated herein by referenc

(s)** Form of Performance Share Agreement, dated Feb&r005, filed under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K filEdbruary 25, 2005.

(t) *%k

(Incorporated herein by referenc

Employment Agreement dated February 18, 2005, dybatween Royal Gold, Inc. and Stefan Wenger, fileder Item 9.01
of Form &K filed February 25, 2005. (Incorporat
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Exhibit

Number Description
herein by reference

21* Royal Gold and Its Subsidiarie

23* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31* (a) Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Offidequired by Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
31* (b) Certification of Treasurer and Chief Accounting ioéF required by Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

32* Written Statement of Chairman and Chief Executiyic@r, and Treasurer and Chief Accounting Offipeirsuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002. (18 U.S.C. 135(

* Filed herewith
**  |dentifies each management contract or compensplt&nor arrangemer

75



Royal Gold, Inc. and Its Subsidiaries

Denver Mining Finance Comparty
Royal Trading Compantp)

Calgom Mining, Inc®) 4)

Mono County Mining Compant})
Royal Camp Bird, Inc®)

Royal Crescent Valley, In€b
Royal Kanaka Creek Corporaticn
Environmental Strategies, Iné)
Greek American Exploration Lt¢®)
Sofia Minerals Ltd(®)

Royal Gold Pty, Ltd.

RG Russia, Indb)

High Desert Mineral Resources, 1.

(1) Owned 100% by Royal Gold, In

(2 Owned 100% by Denver Mining Finance Comp.

() Owned 50% by Royal Gold, In

4 Owns a 100% interest in the Goldstripe Proj

() Owned 25% by Royal Gold, In

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-BB1490), Form S-4 (No. 333-
111590) and on Form S-8 (No. 333-122877) of RoyatGInc. of our report dated August 19, 2005, tietato the consolidated financial
statements, Management’s assessment of the effaeBg of internal control over financial reportargl the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, which appears in thismdr0-K.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
PricewaterhouseCoopers L|
Denver, Colorad:

August 29, 200!




EXHIBIT 31(a)
I, Stanley Dempsey, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual reporsdums contain any untrue statement of a materaldaomit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statedmand other financial information included in thisnual report fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the period presented in this
annual report

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer ahdre responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-a5(f) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this annual report is beingpared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diemcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regstsadisclosure controls and procedures and predantthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguatures, as of the end of the period coveredibyatinual report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chaingée registrant’s internal control over finanai@porting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer ahdhave disclosed, based on our most recent etatuaf internal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tals over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
August 29, 2005

/s/Stanley Dempst

Stanley Dempse
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31(b)

I, Stefan Wenger, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual reporsdud contain any untrue statement of a materdlrfar omits to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedfircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statedmand other financial information included in thisnual report fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the period presented in this
annual report

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer ahdre responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-a5(f) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and plaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this annual report is beingpared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diemcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predemir conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by timial report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chainge registrant’s internal controls over finareigporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer ahdhave disclosed, based on our most recent etatuaf internal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tals over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
August 29, 2005

/s/Stefan Wenge¢

Stefan Wenge
Treasurer and Chief Accounting Offic




EXHIBIT 32

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKRoyal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardimg June 30, 2005, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he “Report”), I, Stanley Dempsey, Chairman @idef Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002 that, to my

knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finarmpaldition and result of operations of the
Company
August 29, 2005

/sIStanley Dempst

Stanley Dempse
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 32

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKRoyal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardimg June 30, 2005, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he “Report”), I, Stefan Wenger, Treasurer &fdef Accounting Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002 that, to my

knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finarmpaldition and result of operations of the
Company
August 29, 2005

/sIStefan Wenge

Stefan Wenger
Treasurer and Chief Accounting Offic
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